
 

 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 

 

COMMISSION MEETING 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

SCIOTO CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

Thursday, September 18, 2014, 1:30 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

 

1:30 p.m. 1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

1:31 p.m. 2. Welcome and Introductions – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair 

 

1:35 p.m. 3. Public Official Spotlight – Senator Jim Hughes, Ohio Senate District 

16 

 

1:40 p.m. 4. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive 

Director 

 

1:50 p.m. 5. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of July 17, 2014 Commission Meeting Minutes 

b. Proposed Resolution 23-14: “TO SUPPORT A COOPERATIVE 

DATE BY WHICH CENTRAL OHIO COMMUNITIES WILL 

CELEBRATE HALLOWEEN TRICK-OR-TREATING” 

c. Proposed Resolution 24-14: “AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT FOR A FINANCIAL 

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND TO ENTER INTO RELATED 

SUBCONTRACTS” 

 

1:55 p.m. 6. Proposed Resolution 22-14: “ACCEPTING CLINTON TOWNSHIP 

(FRANKLIN COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC) – William Murdock, MORPC 

Executive Director 

 

  

 Specials Guests and Presentations 

  

2:00 p.m. 7. Featured Shared Services: City of Powell Solar Project – Steve Lutz, 

City of Powell City Manager 

 



 
 
Commission Meeting Agenda 

September 18, 2014 

Page 2 

 

  

 Committees 

 

2:05 p.m. 8. Boundaries Discussion Task Force – Eric Phillips & Steve Campbell, 

Boundaries Discussion Task Force Co-Chairs  

 

2:10 p.m. 9. Housing & Community Services Working Group – William Murdock, 

MORPC Executive Director, Pat Cash-Isaacson and Lisa Patt-

McDaniel – Housing & Community Services Working Group Co-

Chairs 

 

2:15 p.m. 10. Regional Policy Roundtable – Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher, Regional 

Policy Roundtable Chair 

a. Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Hill Brown & Ritter 

and Laura Koprowski, MORPC Public & Government Affairs 

Director 

 

2:25 p.m. 11. Sustainability Advisory Committee– Kerstin Carr, MORPC Planning & 

Environment  Director and Christina O’Keeffe, MORPC Energy & Air 

Quality Director 

 

 12. Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair  

2:30 p.m. a. Call to Order – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair 

2:31 p.m. b. Transportation Programs Report  

 Transportation Systems & Funding – Thea Walsh, Director 

 Planning & Environment – Kerstin Carr, Director 

 

2:40 p.m. c. Consent Agenda 

 Approval of July 17, 2014 Transportation Policy Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 Proposed Resolution T-10-14: “AMENDING MORPC’S 2012-

2035 METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLAN TO INCLUDE 

TWO PROJECTS” 

 Proposed Resolution T-11-14: “AMENDING THE STATE 

FISCAL YEAR (SFY) 2014-2017 TRANSPORTATION 

IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM” 

 Proposed Resolution T-12-14: “MORPC’S SUPPORT OF THE 

CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY’S CLEVELAND AVENUE 

BUS RAPID TRANSIT PROPOSAL TO FTA FOR §5309 NEW 

STARTS FUNDING” 

 Proposed Resolution T-13-14: “ACCEPTING THE PWP 

COMPLETION REPORT FOR STATE FISCAL YEAR 2014” 

 Proposed Resolution T-14-14: “ESTABLISHING PRIORITIES 

FOR APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED TO THE OHIO STATEWIDE 

URBAN CMAQ COMMITTEE” 
 



 
 
Commission Meeting Agenda 

September 18, 2014 

Page 3 

 

2:41 p.m. d. Adjourn Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips, MORPC 

Chair 

 

2:42 p.m. 13. Motion to Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

 

2:45 p.m. 14. Other Business 

 

2:50 p.m. 15. Adjourn – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair 

 
 

PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR ssaunders@morpc.org  
IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 

 
 

The next Commission Meeting is 
Thursday, October 9, 2014 at 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

 
Note: A portion of the eastbound lane of Liberty Street is closed through the end of 
2014.   
 
MORPC's parking lot is accessible via Front Street, Liberty Street, or Short Street.  
Please be sure to park in a MORPC visitor space or in a space marked with an “M”. 
Handicapped parking is available at the side of MORPC’s building. MORPC is 
accessible by C-Bus. 

 

mailto:ssaunders@morpc.org


1 
 

 

MORPC Monthly Agency Report 

July/August 2014 

 

 
 

Public & Government Affairs  

Laura Koprowski – lkoprowski@morpc.org 

 

MORPC Sponsors Ohio Association of Regional Councils (OARC) Candidates’ Forum 

MORPC partnered with OARC on planning the 2014 Candidates’ Forum at the Columbus Hilton Easton which 

brought together over 200 community and business leaders from across the state to hear the candidates for 

Lt. Governor, incumbent Mary Taylor and challenger Sharen Neuhardt, share their platforms on transportation, 

infrastructure, job creation and economic development. The event also featured a luncheon panel with 

national experts on similar issues. This event gave MORPC the opportunity to work closely with both campaigns 

and other statewide organizations. 

 

Membership 

(Additional membership news in Attachment) 

 

MORPC team members toured Union and Delaware Counties.  

 

A task force of commission members met to explore Grantfinder, a new benefit opportunity, which provides a 

wide array of grants across the nation and an informative e-newsletter with helpful information to community 

stakeholders. Plans are underway to launch this new benefit in September for all MORPC members. 

 

Facebook Ads 

MORPC promoted homebuyer education classes on its Facebook page from August 26 to September 2. For 

$40 the ad reached 11,472 users and had 94 interactions including 36 video plays, 52 link clicks, 15 page 

likes, 26 post likes, 1 comment and 15 shares. At the end of the year, class attendance numbers for 

September through December will be compared with numbers from previous months to determine the ad’s 

effectiveness.  

 

MORPC also promoted the Summit on Sustainability & the Environment on its Facebook page with a $40 ad 

which ran from September 2 to September 9. Registration numbers during that time period will be compared 

with numbers from the entire registration period.  

 

Member Promotions  

MORPC has the ability to promote members’ special events on the Community Calendar on the website and 

using social media. Please contact Eileen Leuby at eleuby@morpc.org with details about an event you wish to 

share. 

 

MORPC In the News 

See the attachment for a list of the various news and media articles for July and August. 

 

  

file://morpc2/two/Executive%20Management/2.%20COMMISSION/2014%20Commission/07%20-%20July/%20lkoprowski@morpc.org
mailto:eleuby@morpc.org


2 
 

Transportation Systems & Funding  

Thea Walsh - twalsh@morpc.org  

 

Highways and Planning  

To support the Central Ohio Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) committee, the Federal Highway 

Administration (FHWA) presented information on the importance and basic requirements of the regional 

architecture.  

 

Freight  

The 2014 Ohio Conference on Freight includes a MORPC team member facilitating a discussion on workforce 

challenges focusing on the Rickenbacker area and the steps MORPC is taking to facilitate mobility in this and 

other employment areas.  

 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP)  

No comments were received on the amendment to the 2012-2035 Metropolitan Transportation Plan. The 

resolution to amend the MTP is being presented to CAC, TAC, and Transportation Policy committees.  

 

Transit/Human Services  

Work continued in support of the JET Task Force Transportation Working Group. Key activities over the summer 

included profiles of similar airports across the country and the working group receiving different perspectives 

on linking the airport to the downtown via transit, including rail transit.  

 

A Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) was signed in August by MORPC and the cities of Columbus and 

Marysville, along with other cities in Ohio and Indiana along the route of a possible Columbus-to-Chicago high-

speed passenger rail corridor. The MOA formalizes already significant collaboration across states to diligently 

review this transportation corridor.  

 

RideSolutions  

The RideSolutions team met with key staff from the Greene County Mobility Manager, Ohio Means Jobs, and 

Jobs and Family Services (JFS) to discuss removing the transportation barrier and connecting individuals to 

affordable and reliable vanpooling services into our MPO region. A pilot project is being developed.  

 

RideSolutions is assisting the Licking County Transit Board as it begins its service reductions. RideSolutions 

purpose is to connect/re-connect Newark commuters to RideSolutions' carpooling, vanpooling and Guaranteed 

Ride Home (GRH) services.  

 

Infrastructure Funding  

MORPC-Attributable Funding  

Thirty-three final applications for new funding were received and are in the review and evaluation process. 

  

OPWC  

Due to closing out older projects, District 3 awarded $7.2 million in SCIP and LTIP grants and loans to four 

additional projects in Round 28 (program year 2014).  

 City of Columbus - Morse Road Preserve TIF improvement  

 City of Columbus - Smoky Row Roadway Improvements  

 Franklin County Engineer - Hayden Run Boulevard  

 Grove City - Orders Road Reconstruction and Trail Improvements  

SCIP/LTIP applications for Round 29 for District 3 (Franklin County) are due on September 15, 2014. 

 

TRAC  

Information sheets for the four TRAC projects submitted this year are posted on the MORPC website. Input on 

the four projects is currently being solicited to use in the priority ranking that will go before CAC, TAC, and 

Transportation Policy Committee during the October meetings. 

 

  

file:///C:/Users/shufstedler/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/QEPGBLFF/twalsh@morpc.org


3 
 

Regional Data and Mapping  

Nancy Reger - nreger@morpc.org 

 

Collaboration and Joint Projects 

Collaboration continues with ODOT, Franklin County, OSU, and Woolpert Engineering firm towards submitting 

an application to the National Historical Publications and Records Commission for developing a website that 

includes historical aerials. The application will be submitted in December. 

 

Data & Mapping Involvement in Projects and Programs 

Data collected for the 2016-2040 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) map includes parcels coded to 

potential land uses based on community land use plans. The codes represent standardized land use types that 

are used in the population and employment allocation model. Thank you to the 20 communities that reviewed 

and edited the online future land use map that will support the MTP. 

 

The Data & Mapping Team scheduled internal focus group meetings to discuss what team data needs and 

what tools they would like to have at their disposal. This is a preliminary step to forming a data task force to 

start discussions about a regional data site. 

 

Many of the on-line maps were moved to a new platform, making them compatible with tablets and mobile 

devices.  

 

Support for Members and the Community at Large    

Information about demographic forecasts and housing with financial assistance programs were developed and 

provided to COTA for their New Starts Application for the Cleveland Avenue Bus Rapid Transit.  As a benefit to 

MORPC members, we now have a comprehensive map of housing units with associated housing assistance 

programs identified.  

 

Maps and supporting documentation were prepared for Columbus2020 for the 2014 Comprehensive 

Economic Development Strategy Report (CEDS). This report is required to gain formal designation as an 

Economic Development District, which would make the region eligible to receive funds from the U.S. Economic 

Development Administration. 

 

The Data and Mapping staff responded to approximately 20 requests for maps, population statistics, or 

marketing information for developers during the month of August. Examples include statistics for SWACO, 

Mayor Coleman’s office, and a hotel developer looking at a site on the west side of Columbus. 

 

Planning and Environment  

Kerstin Carr - kcarr@morpc.org 

 

Active Transportation Planning 

Team members attended the formal dedication/ribbon cutting of the bicycle and pedestrian bridge over County 

Line Road in Westerville. This bridge is an essential part of the Ohio to Erie Trail. It also marks the 

(approximate) midway point along the Ohio to Erie Trail.  

 

Team members met with Columbus, COTA, MKSK, YayBikes and ODOT to discuss a collaborative bike and 

pedestrian safety initiative.  ODOT will take the lead on the project. 

  

Team members participated in Columbus’ Bike-Friendly Community site visit.  A representative from the 

League of American Bicyclists joined team members and representatives of Columbus, along with bike 

planning and advocacy groups for a conversation about Columbus’ Bronze-Level Bicycle-Friendly Community 

designation.  The group conducted an on-bike show-and-tell of what Columbus is doing well and what they 

need to improve on in the bicycle facilities realm.  MORPC learned that the League representative also visited 

Delaware later in the day to conduct a site visit with the same format. 

  

  

file:///C:/Users/shufstedler/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/QEPGBLFF/nreger@morpc.org
mailto:kcarr@morpc.org


4 
 

Safety Planning 

Team members attended the Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) Executive Summit to set a statewide safety 

target to reduce the number of serious injuries and fatalities. Team members attended the City of Columbus 

Large School District Travel Plan Meeting which is the first in the region and one of the first in the nation. Team 

members worked with representatives from Columbus Public Health, ODOT, and Transystems developing ideas 

for encouragement and a presentation/walk audit with high school students from the Near East PACT 

neighborhood.  

 

Team members released the newest top 40 high-crash intersection list, the top locations per community list, 

and the pedestrian and bicycle data using 2011–2013 crash data for MORPC's MPO transportation planning 

area. You can view the information on the website at: http://www.morpc.org/transportation/safety/crash-

data/index.  

 

Greenways Program 

The Economic Impact of Trails study of all trail segment counts is 90 percent complete and the surveys of trail 

users are disseminated. The Universities of Minnesota and Indiana began conducting the property value 

analysis using Franklin and Delaware Counties' home sales data.  

 

Regional Education 

The July Regional Educational Forum, “A Perfect Storm of Land, Water, & Climate Strategies”, featured 

presentations and discussions on six topics: MORPC’s Zoning Whitepaper, insight2050, Groveport’s new 

business model, parking challenges and strategies, storm water strategies, and Sustaining Scioto. 

  

The August Regional Education Forum was organized as a field trip visiting two different Delaware County 

working farms: Price Farm Organics and Stratford Ecological Center to learn about sustainable farming 

techniques, local sourcing, and meat processing.  

 

The Summit on Sustainability & the Environment is October 10, 2014 at the Hilton downtown Columbus. The 

keynote speaker will be Craig W. Butler, director of the Ohio EPA during MORPC's signature environmental 

conference that will bring hundreds of community leaders together to explore and share sustainable ideas and 

solutions. This year's theme, Building a Sustainable Future, focuses on sharing best practices that can be 

applied by local governments, businesses, and residents to improve the built environment in which we live. For 

more information and to register for the summit, please visit: www.morpc.org/summit.  

 

Regional Collaboration 

Team members participated in two InfoShare meetings: Genoa Township and Dublin. Genoa Township sees 

residential development and they are updating their comprehensive plan. Dublin continues to see 

development in all sectors with interest in the research and development industry. Dublin plans to construct 

numerous infrastructure projects throughout the City including roundabouts and bike facilities.  

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee 

The Sustainability Advisory Committee met September 2, 2014 serving as the voice for sustainability on 

MORPC's Commission and advisors to MORPC’s sustainability-focused programming, working groups, and 

committees. The Committee focuses on supporting the sustainability priorities of the MORPC member 

governments, and its work will be integrated with MORPC’s strategic plan, public policy agenda, and the Green 

Pact. The committee is chaired by Franklin County Commissioner Marilyn Brown and Union County 

Commissioner Steve Stolte.  

 

insight2050 

insight2050's consultant presented draft results on the various growth scenarios and key metrics, such as 

land consumption, traffic, or households costs. MORPC, ULI, and Columbus 2020, hosted a Mayor's Breakfast 

to share preliminary findings with the group and get their input and comments.  

 

MORPC's Transportation Advisory Committee, COTA’s Accessible Transportation Advisory Committee (ATAC), 

NAIOP (Central Ohio Commercial Real Estate Development Association), Kiwanis, and MORPC's July Regional 

Education Forum all received presentations. Additionally, insight2050 is helping inform conversations with 

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/safety/crash-data/index
http://www.morpc.org/transportation/safety/crash-data/index
http://www.morpc.org/summit


5 
 

Westerville about demographics and the future of development, and may provide a useful case study for its 

application throughout the region. 

 

The project team completed the insight2050 FAQ (Frequently Asked Questions) which is available on the 

project website: www.morpc.org/insight2050.  

 

The fifth issue of the biweekly insight2050 e-newsletter was sent September 4. Previous issues are available 

at www.morpc.org/insight2050.  

 

Sustaining Scioto 

The Sustaining Scioto Steering Committee discussed USGS’ final report progress, Brown and Caldwell’s 

Vulnerability Assessment, and the agenda of the next Stakeholders Advisory Committee. The Sustaining Scioto 

Stakeholders Advisory Committee focused on the development of adaptive management plans/strategies for 

the critical vulnerabilities in the region.  

 

Regional Food Council 

OSU’s College of Food, Agriculture and Environmental Sciences, is interested in OSU becoming more involved 

in regional food planning. Additionally, Franklin County Commissioner O’Grady’s staff is interested in local food 

and economic development, opportunities to collaborate, and received copies of MORPC’s Local Food 

Economic Development Toolkit. 

 

Energy & Air Quality 

Christina O'Keeffe - cokeeffe@morpc.org  

 

Air Quality 

MORPC team members met with Central Ohio Trauma Systems (COTS) to introduce Air Quality Alert forecasting 

as a service to area hospitals. Hospitals will be informed of the service and will sign up to receive Air Quality 

Alerts, which may impact hospital admissions.   

 

The next Energy & Air Quality Working Group meeting is September 30, 2014 at MORPC at 1:30 p.m. 

 

Energy & Air Quality Working Group  

The Working Group convened on July 29, 2014 with presentations from Sonoma forecasters on the Columbus 

region’s ozone season thus far, and Ohio EPA Assistant Chief for the Central District, Adam Ward, on 

implications of the 111(d) rulemaking process.  The next meeting is September 29, 2014.  

Marketing 

Marketing collaborated with community agencies to provide information on our weatherization programs to the 

agency’s elderly and veteran customers. The Family Enrichment Festival (FamJam) with the City of Columbus 

and Franklin County Children Services was a success and participation will continue through October for the 

Neighborhood Pride events.  

The weatherization showcase is October 29, 2014. Potential homeowners are identified and will be contacted 

the first week of September.   

Materials Management Working Group  

The working group meeting included a presentation from Angel Arroyo-Rodriguez, and discussion about the 

Summit event and Sustainability Advisory Committee. The next meeting is September 24, 2014 at the 

Columbus Zoo and Aquarium, where participants will see examples of sustainability initiatives focused on 

waste reduction and recycling at the new restaurant. Participants are encouraged to stay and have lunch after 

the meeting.  MORPC members are welcome to attend and should RSVP to Brandi Whetstone, 

bwhetstone@morpc.org by Sept. 17, 2014. 

ME3 

Staff submitted a quarterly grant report to U.S. EPA which includes estimated annual savings from 

implemented projects based on recommendations from ME3 technical assessments. Implemented projects 

reported by seven facilities have cumulatively resulted in annual savings of 2,267 metric tons of CO2, 

file:///C:/Users/shufstedler/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/QEPGBLFF/www.morpc.org/insight2050
http://www.morpc.org/insight2050
file://morpc2/two/Executive%20Management/2.%20COMMISSION/2014%20Commission/06%20-%20June/cokeeffe@morpc.org%20


6 
 

equivalent to the annual emissions from 477 passenger vehicles. In addition, the companies are cumulatively 

saving an estimated $550,584 annually from actions to reduce electrical and natural gas consumption, water 

consumption, and waste sent to the landfill.  

 

Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Study 

MORPC submitted a request to evaluate the feasibility and planning for a regional PACE district. The 

Commission approved the resolution to move forward in June and the Local Government Innovation Council 

meets on September 10, 2014 to make decisions on the awards for submitted proposals.  

 

Regional Energy Action Plan 

On July 14, 2014 MORPC and the National Association of Regional Councils (NARC) released the first-of-its-

kind Regional Energy Action Plan. Made possible through support by The Energy Foundation, the Regional 

Energy Action Plan provides an assessment of the economic, social, and policy realities related to the 

development and use of energy throughout the 12-county Central Ohio region. The release generated an article 

in Business First. 

 

Residential Energy Efficiency Program 

MORPC received notice for another round of funding through the Home Weatherization Assistance Program 

(HWAP) from the ODSA in the amount of $686,619. The final agreement is pending approval by ODSA. In 

addition, MORPC received another round of funding in the amount of $150,000 for the Electric Partnership 

Program (EPP) that runs from July 1, 2014 – June 30, 2015.  

 

Production 

MORPC is striving to meet goals under the WarmChoice program balanced with limited capacity in energy 

auditors. More than 75% of the households receiving energy audits as planned to date have been conducted. 

Production was affected due to required training and recertification by inspectors/auditors and is beginning to 

stabilize. Production will begin to increase after September as all auditors will be fully trained and certified to 

work in the field.  

 

Customer Service/Intake 

Applications for service through WarmChoice and HWAP have increased over the past two months. There are 

currently more than 150 applications approved for service. 

 

Housing & Community Services 

Kathy Werkmeister – kwerkmeister@morpc.org 

 

Homebuyer Education 

Homebuyer Education classes (series of three sessions) are offered on September 10, 17, and 24, 2014. 

Final classes for 2014 are scheduled for the first, second, and third Wednesdays of October, November, and 

December.  

 

Community Housing Improvement Program (CHIP) –The rehab team is processing the final single-family rehab 

project for the Pataskala CHIP; all Pataskala CHIP projects are now under construction or complete.   

 

Housing Repair and Rehabilitation – The rehab team is taking applications and managing home repair work in 

Franklin County including Weinland Park and Franklinton area in the City of Columbus.  

 

The rehab team has one home left to rehabilitate in the Franklin County Single Family Rehabilitation (SFR) 

program.  The new and final SFR program construction began on the first of eight homes, with six of the 

remaining homes identified. 

 

Administration 

Shawn Hufstedler – shufstedler@morpc.org 

 

Accounting Software 

The team reviewing the proposals for the new accounting software is finalizing the evaluation process. A 

vendor is expected to be selected in September with the implementation process starting in September as 

file:///C:/Users/shufstedler/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/QEPGBLFF/kwerkmeister@morpc.org
file://morpc2/two/Executive%20Management/2.%20COMMISSION/2014%20Commission/07%20-%20July/shufstedler@morpc.org


7 
 

well. The new software is expected to provide enhanced reporting and tracking capabilities and go live January 

1, 2015.  

 

LEANOhio Training 

Nine MORPC team members attended the LEANOhio week-long training "Transforming the Public Sector" in 

August. Scholarships/grants for this training are available through the Local Government Efficiency Program for 

interested agencies at: http://lean.ohio.gov/local/faq.aspx#lgepscholarships. This State program also has 

funds available for political subdivisions seeking grants for training in and implementation of process efficiency 

programs such as Lean, Kaizen and Six Sigma.   

 

Deborah Murphy – dmurphy@morpc.org 

 

Open Positions  - The following positions are open and in the interview process: 

 Intern for Planning & Environment department  

 Program Manager for Energy & Air Quality  

 HVAC Technician for Energy & Air Quality  

 

ATTACHMENT 

Membership Visits 

Preliminary MPO expansion meetings are taking place to explore opportunities with a small number of 

bordering communities. A special marketing brochure was developed for each of the prospective communities.  

 

Member visits were completed with the Villages of Johnstown and Lithopolis, and Madison Township(Franklin 

County), and Franklin County Policy Directors.   

 

Member Services participated in external member events including the City of Columbus CNG Fueling Station 

Dedication, the Long Street Bridge Dedication, and the City of Canal Winchester – Roundabout Opening, The 

Mid American Global Adventures – introduction of EB5 opportunities and the Franklin County Retail Summit.  

 

Recruiting visits were extended to Liberty Township (Delaware County) and Clinton Township; the City of 

Newark; Morrow County, Mount Gilead, Mount Vernon, Knox County and the Villages of Galena and Sunbury. 

 

Professional Development activity included participation in Kegler Brown’s “Anatomy of the Legislative 

Process,” the Ohio Economic Development Association – Commercial Information Exchange; and MODE’s  

Sunshine Rules Training.  

 

Projects that were launched this month included a new MPO brochure, a comprehensive membership brochure 

and a survey of benefits among Ohio Regional Planning Commissions. 

 

MORPC In the News 

Press Releases are located on the MORPC website at: http://www.morpc.org  

 

July Articles in Media 

This Week News: City, ODOT will study SR 161 intersections 

Downtown News Network: MORPC Homeownership Classes 

Columbus Post: MORPC announces education sessions for home buying July 3-9, 2014 

Columbus Business First: MORPC’s Brewery District headquarters sold to DiSabato/Canini venture 

This Week News: Leaders seek funds for Route 750 work after zoo's rebuff 

The Columbus Dispatch: Forecast predicts central Ohio population will grow by 500,000 by 2050 

The Columbus Dispatch: Bike path should put preservation and safety first 

The Columbus Dispatch: Transportation Insider: Private donors paid for party on Long Street Bridge 

The Columbus Dispatch: Think regionally to link energy policy with economic development, MORPC 

report urges 

The Columbus Dispatch: Cleaner rides, rain ease smog in central Ohio 

This Week Community News: Rescinded JEDZ makes Route 310 project uncertain 

Downtown News Network: MORPC Central Ohio Bike Trails Survey 

http://lean.ohio.gov/local/faq.aspx#lgepscholarships
file://morpc2/two/Executive%20Management/2.%20COMMISSION/2014%20Commission/07%20-%20July/dmurphy@morpc.org
http://www.morpc.org/


8 
 

“Columbus Perspective” on 97.1 The Fan: Air Quality Interview 

The Columbus Dispatch: Take the survey and help the bike trails 

Marysville Tribune: City Part of Group Exploring High Speed Rail  

 

August Articles in Media 

Columbus Dispatch: MORPC spent part of last week surveying trail users 

The Lima News: High speed rail back in conversation Lima, Kenton mayors among nine signing memorandum 

Downtown News Network: MORPC Central Ohio Bike Trails Survey 

Columbus Underground: Next Steps Taken to Continue Evaluation of Columbus-to-Chicago Rail 

WTVN610 radio: Mayors Move Columbus Chicago Passenger Rail Line Project Forward 

All Aboard Ohio: Ohio Indiana Mayors MORPC to jointly seek Columbus-Chicago rail 

Delaware Gazette: O’Brien questions MORPC’s agenda 

The Columbus Dispatch: Transportation Insider: Tibet Road will be resurfaced — someday 

The Columbus Dispatch: Bicycle trail’s extension ought to enhance area 

The Columbus Dispatch: Transportation Insider: A team of area mayors and the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission are trying to help push forward studies on a $1.3 billion rail line that proponents hope one day will 

link Chicago to Columbus. 

Newark Advocate: City Finishes First Phase of Mink Street Project 

Olentangy Valley News: Powell matches township's contribution toward 750 work 

Downtown News Network: MORPC Central Ohio Bike Trails Survey 

Newark Advocate: Final Phase of Mink Street Project to Cost $6 Million 

This Week News: City seeking grant to fund widening of northern segment of Olentangy Trail 

Digital Journal: Walkable Neighborhoods and German Village Society Announce September 2014 

Great Placemakers Lab Conference 

Columbus Underground: New Study Asks: Can We Stop the Sprawl in Columbus? 

Columbus Underground: Interview: MORPC’s William Murdock on Planning for Growth in Central Ohio 

The Columbus Dispatch: Lt. Gov. Taylor, Sharen Neuhardt talk jobs, local government funds 

The Hannah Report: Taylor, Neuhardt Talk Transportation, Jobs, LGF at OARC Forum 

The Hannah Report: Panelists Say Policymakers Must Rethink Transportation Priorities, Funding 

News Herald: Danbury Township Board of Trustees meeting summary 



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Commission 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, July 17, 2014 

1:30 p.m. 

 

Commission Members 

Karen Angelou 

Herb Asher 

Trudy Bartley 

Stacey Boumis 

Eric Brandon 

Susan Brobst 

Marilyn Brown 

Greg Butcher 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher 

Franklin Christman 

Derrick Clay 

Ben Collins 

William Dorman 

Michael Ebert 

Terry Emery 

Steve Gladman 

Matt Greeson 

Marsha Grigsby 

Marian Harris 

Pamela Hykes-O'Grady 

Erik Janas 

Steve Kennedy 

Jim Lenner 

Greg Lestini 

Rory McGuiness 

Bonnie Michael 

Erin Miller 

Ellen Moss Williams 

Robert Myers 

Megan O’Callaghan 

Ray Ogden for Zach Woodruff 

Victor Paini 

Eileen Paley 

Eric Phillips 

Elissa Schneider 

Ashley Senn 

Ike Stage 

Joe Stefanov 

Scott Tourville 

 

Associate Members 

Jamie Grube 

John O’Meara 

Nikki Scarpitti 

Joe Weitz for Jeff Cabot 

 

Policy Committee Members 

Mike Bradley for W. Curtis Stitt 

Mike Maleski 

David Paul 

Thom Slack 

 

Staff 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Tracy Clifton 

Nick Gill 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

Eileen Leuby 

Sarah McQuaide 

William Murdock 

Deborah Murphy 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Andy Taylor 

Thea Walsh 

Garth Weithman 

 

Guests 

Joe DiStefano, Calthorpe Associates 

Matt Peoples, Central Ohio Health Consortium 

Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter 

 

 

 

Chair Eric Phillips called the Commission Meeting to order at 1:35 p.m. followed by the pledge of allegiance. 

 

The first meeting of the Sustainability Advisory Committee, Co-Chaired by Franklin County Commissioner 

Marilyn Brown and Union County Commissioner Steve Stolte, is in September. 

 

Chair Phillips welcomed new Transportation Systems & Funding Director Thea Walsh. Her previous work 

experience includes serving as the Deputy Chief of the Community Services Division at the Ohio Development 

Services Agency and as Director of the Clark County-Springfield Transportation Coordination Committee, a 



Commission Meeting Minutes 

July 17, 2014 

Page 2 

 
metropolitan planning organization in Springfield, Ohio. Ms. Walsh looks forward to working at MORPC and is 

happy to be a part of it. 

 

Derrick Clay announced the Democratic National Convention (DNC) is considering holding their 2015 

convention in Columbus. The site selection team is visiting Columbus in August. Mr. Clay is collecting letters of 

support to share with the DNC. He encouraged members to consider writing a support letter if you receive an 

email from him. There is a reception for the site selection team August 6, 2014, 5:30-7:30 p.m. 

 

Consent Agenda 

Ike Stage made a motion to approve the consent agenda, second by Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher; motion 

passed.  Marilyn Brown abstained. 

 

Special Guests and Presentations 

 

insight2050 – Joe DiStefano, Calthorpe Associates 

Joe DiStefano, Calthorpe Associates and Lead Consultant on insight2050, gave a presentation on the 

insight2050 initial findings. William Murdock informed members that this is a preliminary phase of the project 

and the handout provided is a sneak preview of the final report. In response to a question regarding the 

number of households with children, Joe DiStefano responded that Columbus is following the national trend of 

fewer children in proportion to the total population. He is uncertain how this may affect schools. 

 

Featured Shared Services: Healthcare – Matt Peoples, City of Canal Winchester Public Works Director 

Matt Peoples, Chairman of the Board for the Central Ohio Health Care Consortium (COHCC) gave a 

presentation on the consortium which was established in 1992. 

 

 

Executive Director’s Report and Proposed Resolutions 

 

Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 

William Murdock reminded members there is no Commission meeting in August.  

 

Mr. Murdock referred to the organization chart provided to members as a reference guide for them. Relocating 

team members internally began last week. The move is to accommodate the new department organizational 

structure. 

 

Mr. Murdock announced the recent Business First article reporting the sale of the building does not affect the 

agency. Our current lease is unaffected. The Building Committee is still evaluating building options, which 

includes staying at 111 Liberty Street.  

 

Nancy Reger and her team is working with members’ planners and developers to make certain information is 

current on the interactive map tool that will be used to review land use codes in the 2016-2040 Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan. Contact Nancy Reger with questions. 

  

Mr. Murdock informed the Commission that in the past MORPC had excess parking spaces and is now 

experiencing a lack of space due to now occupied neighboring buildings and increasing attendance numbers 

at MORPC Commission meetings and other events. MORPC team members worked on a solution and 

beginning Monday, July 21, 2014, MORPC employees will park behind the Kroger. This leaves 45-50 parking 

spaces for visitors. Visitors can park in a space marked with an “M” or in a space with a MORPC visitor sign. 

The temporary parking passes are no longer needed. MORPC made arrangements with the Grange Insurance 

Garage to accommodate overflow parking.  

 

The Regional Energy Action Plan was released Monday.  Christina O’Keeffe stated that MORPC will continue to 

listen to members’ concerns regarding energy needs. The Sustainability Advisory Committee and the Energy & 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2014Julyinsight2050PPT.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2014Julyinsight2050handout.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2014JulyCOHCC.pdf


Commission Meeting Minutes 

July 17, 2014 

Page 3 

 
Air Quality Working Group will work on implementing recommendations from the plan. MORPC recently 

submitted an application to the Local Government Innovation Fund (LGIF) to evaluate the feasibility and 

planning of a regional Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) district on behalf of MORPC’s members. PACE is 

one tool in the project financing for energy efficiency and clean energy improvements. Ms. O’Keeffe reported 

that the U.S. EPA Director requested a copy of the Regional Energy Action Plan; this gives Central Ohio an 

opportunity to insert our voice into federal and state policy. 

 

The Housing and Community Services Working Group is finalizing its recommendations and will present them 

at the September Commission meeting.  

 

Upcoming events: 

 RiverFest On Tour! Alum Creek Pedal & Paddle, Saturday, July 19, 2014 

 Union County Tour, Wednesday, July 30, 2014 

 Gubernatorial Event, Friday, August 22, 2014 

 RideSolutions Greener Workplace Forum with the City of Dublin – August 

 Ohio Conference on Freight, Thursday-Friday, September 18-19, 2014 

 

 Quarterly Membership Update – Eileen Leuby, Public & Government Affairs 
Eileen Leuby led the Commission through a MORPC Report Card exercise. The results of the exercise will 

be used to help make more connectivity with members and determine where MORPC needs to increase 

outreach efforts.  

 

Ms. Leuby will send an email to Commission members asking them to complete the Conflict of 

Interest/Information Questionnaire using Survey Monkey. 

 

Ms. Leuby and William Murdock have visited each Commission member community and are beginning a 

second round of visits. A Township Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, September 9, 2014. MORPC and a 

few commission communities are pilot testing a grant finder program. 
 

Proposed Resolution 20-14: “ADOPTING A FEE SCHEDULE FOR USE IN ASSESSING MEMBERS IN 2015” – 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Erin Miller made a motion to approve Resolution 20-14, second by Pamela Hykes O’Grady; motion passed.  

 

Proposed Resolution 21-14: “ACCEPTANCE OF THE MID-YEAR REVISION TO THE FISCAL BUDGET AND FUND 

ACCOUNT APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE OPERATION OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION FOR 

2014” – Shawn Hufstedler 

Marilyn Brown made a motion to approve Resolution 21-14, second by Derrick Clay; motion passed.  

 

 

Committees 

 

Regional Policy Roundtable –Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher, Roundtable Chair 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher announced the next roundtable meeting is Thursday, July 24, 2014, where approval 

of the new membership guidelines is expected.  Work will begin on the 2015 Public Policy Agenda in September. 

Steve Campbell will lead the effort. 

 

 Legislative Update –Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter and Laura Koprowski, MORPC 
Public & Government Affairs 
Steve Tugend and Laura Koprowski gave the legislative update and highlighted the following issues: 

o Reception for Newly Elected State Officials and County Commissioners – Tuesday, December 9, 

2014, 5:00-7:30 p.m., Renaissance Hotel – free for MORPC members – the registration link will be 

sent to members 

o HB 5 – Municipal income tax uniformity 

http://ohiofreight.org/OCF.htm


Commission Meeting Minutes 

July 17, 2014 

Page 4 

 
o Federal Highway Trust Fund 

o Fall elections 

o Ohio House/Senate Lame Duck sessions 

 

Grove City Mayor Ike Stage thanked MORPC, the Ohio Public Works Commission, Wilma Yoder, Franklin County, 

New Albany, and ODOT for their collaborative effort in allowing Grove City to receive a $2 million grant. 
 

Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair  

Chair Eric Phillips called the Transportation Policy Committee Session to order at 2:38 p.m.  The session 

adjourned at 2:48 p.m. Separate minutes are attached. 

 

Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

Marilyn Brown made a motion to approve the actions of the Transportation Policy Committee, second by 

Derrick Clay; motion passed. 

 

Other Business 

Eileen Leuby welcomed new Commission members Victor Paini representing Madison Township and Vince 

Papsidero representing the City of Columbus.  

 

The Commission Meeting adjourned at 2:50 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  



 

 

Memorandum 
 
TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Bernice Cage, Public Information & Diversity Officer 

Public & Government Affairs  

 

DATE: 

 

September 12, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 23-14: “TO SUPPORT A COOPERATIVE DATE BY 

WHICH CENTRAL OHIO COMMUNITIES WILL CELEBRATE HALLOWEEN 

TRICK-OR-TREATING” 

 

In July a conference call was held with our community membership and the Franklin 

County EMA to determine whether to maintain the current policy on changing the 

unified date for “Trick or Treat” and to address the issue of cancellation in the event 

of inclement weather.  Based on these conversations and input from the MORPC 

membership, the majority of MORPC membership supports continuing a unified date 

for “Trick or Treat”.  There was consensus from the membership that “Trick or Treat” 

not be cancelled in the event of inclement weather.  The membership further agreed 

to place on their websites and Social Media that “Trick or Treat” will be held, rain or 

shine, on the day scheduled. Media calls are to be referred to the Public Information 

Officers of the local jurisdictions and public calls are to be referred to local 

communities. 

 

It is the desire of the MORPC Board to support a unified date for “Trick or Treat”.  

MORPC’s members recommend that when Halloween, October 31, falls on the 

weekend nights of Friday, Saturday, or Sunday, “Trick or Treat” would be held on the 

Thursday prior to October 31.  If October 31 falls on a Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday 

or Thursday, “Trick or Treat” would be held on October 31.  In the event of inclement 

weather, the scheduled “Trick or Treat” will not be cancelled by MORPC or local 

jurisdictions.   

 

The schedule would be as follows through 2019: 

 

2014 - Thursday, October 30 

2015 - Thursday, October 29  

2016 – Monday, October 31 

2017 – Tuesday, October 31 

2018 – Wednesday, October 31 

2019 – Thursday, October 31 

 

 



 

 

Resolution 23-14 

Memo 

Page 2 

 

MORPC is a proponent of pedestrian safety and will continue to promote the 

importance of safety during “Trick or Treat”, rain or shine.  In that effort MORPC will 

place the following message on its website and on Social Media: 

 

“Trick or Treat” for most communities is scheduled, rain or shine, on Thursday, 

October 30, 2014.  In the event of inclement weather, “Trick or Treat” will not be 

cancelled. Parents are encouraged, however, to exercise judgment in allowing 

children to participate.  Please contact your local community to confirm the day for 

Trick or Treat in your area and for further details. 

 

Attachment: Resolution 23-14 

  

 



RESOLUTION 23-14 

 

“TO SUPPORT A COOPERATIVE DATE BY WHICH CENTRAL OHIO COMMUNITIES WILL CELEBRATE 

HALLOWEEN TRICK-OR-TREATING” 

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) to recommend a 

unified date by which Central Ohio communities will schedule “Trick or Treat”; and  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC recommends that when Halloween, October 31, falls on the weekend nights of 

Friday, Saturday or Sunday, then “Trick or Treat” will be held on the Thursday prior to October 31.  If 

October 31 falls on a Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday or Thursday, “Trick or Treat” will take place on 

October 31; and   

 

WHEREAS, in the event of inclement weather, MORPC recommends that “Trick or Treat” is not 

cancelled or date moved by MORPC or local communities; and   

 

WHEREAS, MORPC is a proponent of pedestrian safety and will continue to promote safety during 

“Trick or Treat”, rain or shine; and therefore   

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

  

Section 1. That the Commission recommends a cooperative date and time period during which 

“Trick or Treat” will take place in Central Ohio communities. 

 

  Proposed schedule through 2019: 

 

  2014 - Thursday, October 30 

2015 - Thursday, October 29  

2016 – Monday, October 31 

2017 – Tuesday, October 31 

2018 – Wednesday, October 31 

2019 – Thursday, October 31 

 

Section 2. In the event of inclement weather, Halloween “Trick or Treat” will not be cancelled by 

MORPC or local communities. 

 

Section 3. That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 

 

 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

 

Effective Date:  September 18, 2014 

Submitted by:  Bernice Cage, Public Information & Diversity Officer 

   Public and Government Affairs 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For Action Date: September 18, 2014 



 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

 

DATE: 

 

September 12, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 24-14: "AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENTS FOR A FINANCIAL 

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM" 

 
 

 

While multiple updates to the accounting software have been made 

throughout the years, MORPC has been using the same financial accounting 

system (MS Dynamics SL) since 2001 and has outgrown some of the set-up 

assumptions used when it was installed. In June 2014, MORPC issued a 

Request for Proposals looking for a financial accounting system more fitting to 

our needs that includes sufficient tracking and reporting for our agency.  After 

evaluating the proposals and viewing demonstrations, MORPC team members 

are finalizing the evaluation team decision to select a software and vendor for 

a new accounting system. 

 

The resolution requests authorization for the executive director to enter into 

agreement(s) with vendor(s) to purchase/license and install a new accounting 

system including training. The costs are expected to be $125,000 or less in 

the first year and $20,000 or less annually thereafter. Our current system 

installed in 2001 had a purchase, installation and training cost of 

approximately $100,000 with $8,112 annual costs. 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 24-14 



RESOLUTION 24-14 

 

“AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENTS FOR A FINANCIAL AC-

COUNTING SYSTEM” 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC has been using the same financial accounting system since 2001; and 

 

WHEREAS, the current financial accounting system has outgrown some of the set-up assumptions 

used when it was installed; and 

 

WHEREAS, in June 2014, MORPC issued a Request for Proposals for a financial accounting system; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, after MORPC finance team members reviewed proposals and accounting systems 

demonstrations, and intend to select the best financial accounting system to meet MORPC’s needs; 

now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the executive director is authorized to enter into agreements with one or more 

vendors for purchase/licensing of a financial accounting system including training 

and implementation in an amount not to exceed $125,000 for the first year, plus an 

amount not to exceed $20,000 annually thereafter. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to approve one or more extensions of time 

for performance of services under the foregoing agreement and change orders not to 

exceed 20 percent of the original total agreement price without further authorization 

from this Commission. 

 

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with advice of legal counsel, he shall deem 

necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 4. That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 

 

 

                                                                                

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: September 18, 2014 

Submitted by: Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

Prepared by:  Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: September 18, 2014 

 



 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

William Murdock 

Executive Director 

 

DATE: 

 

September 12, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 22-14: "ACCEPTING CLINTON TOWNSHIP 

(FRANKLIN COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)" 

 
 

 

The Clinton Township Trustees met September 3, 2014 and passed a resolution to 

join the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) and to accept the 

conditions of membership contained in MORPC’s Articles of Agreement. The attached 

resolution accepts Clinton Township as a member of MORPC, which will help meet 

the desire of MORPC’s membership to continue to grow the organization for the 

benefit of a stronger Central Ohio region. 

   

Attachment:  Resolution 22-14 



RESOLUTION 22-14 

 

“ACCEPTING CLINTON TOWNSHIP (FRANKLIN COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)” 

 

WHEREAS, Clinton Township recognizes the need for collaborative, cooperative planning in order to 

ensure continued growth and prosperity; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC’s mission is to be the regional voice and a catalyst for sustainability and econom-

ic prosperity in order to secure a competitive advantage for Central Ohio; and 

 

WHEREAS, Clinton Township has petitioned for membership in MORPC; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of MORPC’s members to continue to grow for the benefit of strong collabo-

ration on regional issues; and  

 

WHEREAS, Clinton Township will be assessed $671 prorated dues based on 2013 population; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Clinton Township Trustees passed a resolution accepting the conditions of member-

ship contained in MORPC’s Articles of Agreement; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That Clinton Township is accepted as a member of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission effective September 18, 2014. 

 

Section 2. That the Bylaws provide that one (1) representative for Clinton Township is eligible to 

serve as a voting member at the MORPC Commission meetings. 

 

Section 3. That Clinton Township shall be entitled to the same regular services of MORPC as 

other members and that any special services will be purchased by the Township 

based on standard MORPC rates.   

 

Section 4. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 5.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

                                                                                

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: September 18, 2014 

Submitted by: William Murdock, Executive Director 

Prepared by:  Eileen Leuby, Member Services Coordinator, Public & Government Affairs 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: September 18, 2014 

 



 

 

Housing & Community Services Working Group  

Recommendations for MORPC Leadership 

Summer 2014 
 

Background 

In late 2013, MORPC appointed a special Housing and Community Services Working Group to examine and review 

MORPC’s involvement in regional housing and community services programming in regards to the needs of local 

governments in Central Ohio, current and future trends and opportunities, and financial sustainability for MORPC 

and its members. In addition, the Working Group was charged with the task of reviewing the programs and services 

delivered by the Housing and Community Services staff and then of making recommendations to you on the future 

direction of the Housing and Community Services Department. 

The members of the working group included a cross section of regional and state experts in housing, sustainability, 

and community services and representatives from MORPC local government members: 

 Nichole Brandon, Deputy Director, Development, City of Columbus 

 Steven Gladman, President, Affordable Housing Trust 

 Hope Kingsborough, Program Manager, Central Ohio Community Improvement Corporation 

 Megan Melby, Team Leader, Demand Side Management Columbia Gas of Ohio 

 Rollin Seward, Assistant Director, Franklin County Economic Development & Planning 

 Nancy White, Fiscal Officer, Mifflin Township 

 Pat Cash Isaacson, Joint Columbus Franklin County Housing Advisory Board 

 Lisa Patt-McDaniel, Director of Community Development, Ohio Capital Corporation for Housing 

The Working Group has been meeting since late February to learn about the programs and services offered by the 

Department currently and in the recent past. We have surveyed MORPC membership to get a feel for needs and 

awareness of the Department, and we have had some information on other providers in Central Ohio. 

We have concluded our review and are prepared to make recommendations for MORPC leadership to consider. After 

thorough review and discussion, the Working Group affirms that MORPC performs a necessary regional role for 

assistance and collaboration in housing and community services for Central Ohio and its local governments. This 

role could be enhanced and made more financially sustainable to provide additional service to local governments, 

businesses, and residents in Central Ohio. 

In addition, the following recommendations were presented and discussed at our meeting on May 1, 2014. There 

are recommendations for new directions and for present services that could make those services more self-

sustaining and leverage existing expertise. 

 

Recommendation 1:  

Develop MORPC as a Regional Resource for Housing Training, Information, and Data 

 Regional Training for Housing Development and Construction 

o Develop a regional partnership with government partners at the local, state, and federal levels, 

universities, and private industry to create a self-supporting training program training which assists 

local government agencies, advances sustainable housing and construction techniques, and 

promotes energy efficiency. Areas could include: 

 Healthy and Sustainable Housing 

 Energy Efficiency Programs 

 New techniques in housing construction and rehabilitation 

o Sponsor a Regional Housing Summit for Local Government and Nonprofit Leaders that would 

address challenges and trends and promote regionally-focused dialogue with state and federal 

programs. 



 

 Regional Housing and Community Services Data Initiative  

o Partner with local housing and community service agencies, IBM, and other research organizations 

to connect databases to target resources for areas of greatest need and to examine developing 

housing and development trends in Central Ohio. 

o Sponsor and coordinate a Regional Housing Action Plan that would examine trends in housing, 

affordability, jobs, and sustainability, seek innovative ways to leverage existing public and private 

resources, and develop recommendations and solutions for local governments and community 

organizations in Central Ohio. 

 

Recommendation 2:  

Explore Opportunities to Expand Housing Counseling Role and Fair Housing Services

• Examine new opportunities and maintain existing efforts serving Central Ohio local governments and their 

residents by expanding regional role in housing counseling and fair housing. This could include: 

o Expanding Housing Counseling services in the city of Columbus covered by the Housing Counseling 

Grant 

o Applying to become an Intermediary for Housing Counseling Agencies in Ohio 

o Exploring the establishment of a Fair Housing Hub in Central Ohio, patterned on the Toledo Fair 

Housing Center 

 

Recommendation 3:  

Maintain Current Housing Rehabilitation Capacity for the Near Term 

• Maintain critical rehabilitation services for local governments in Central Ohio, but closely examine each 

service to ensure it is financially sustainable for MORPC to provide. Key services to maintain for the near 

term include: 

o Serving as Franklin County’s provider of Emergency Rehabilitation Services 

o Serving MORPC local government members currently depending on assistance with administration of 

CHIP Grants 

o Proposed expansion of additional rehabilitation or housing development programming should be 

strictly contingent on available MORPC professional staff capacity and be financially sustainable for 

the agency. 

 

Recommendation 4:  

Develop a Standing Advisory Group for MORPC’s Housing & Community Services Programs 

• Develop an ongoing advisory group to assist MORPC leadership, to develop and enhance regional 

collaboration between service providers, and to advise the Housing & Community Services Department. 

o This could leverage an existing MORPC committee or regional committee such as the Housing 

Advisory Board 



Laura Koprowski
Director of Public + Government Affairs
(614) 233-4126
lkoprowski@morpc.org

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Monthly Legislative Update

www.morpc.org    |    www.keglerbrown.com

Garth Weithman 
Public Affairs Specialist
(614) 233-4127
gweithman@morpc.org

JULY + AUGUST 2014

Table of Contents

Top Advocacy Items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

Top News in Ohio . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

MORPC Legislative Tracking . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

State + Federal Government Update . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4-5

mailto:lkoprowski%40morpc.org?subject=
http://www.morpc.org
http://www.keglerbrown.com


www.morpc.org    |    www.keglerbrown.com 2

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Monthly Legislative Update

TOP ADVOCACY ITEMS

Priority Status

Secure ODOT TRAC Funding for Regional 
Projects

MORPC is reviewing and ranking four Central Ohio transportation 
projects for the current TRAC application cycle. MORPC will 
take member and public input on these projects through Sept. 
24. Project information is available at www.morpc.org.

Arrive at Solution for Uniform Municipal 
Income Tax Issue

Leadership in the Senate has made it clear that House Bill 
5, in some form, will be passed by that legislative chamber. 
MORPC maintains its opposition to HB 5. MORPC is now working 
with legislators and other municipal advocates to arrive at a 
compromise. The bill received two hearings in the Senate prior 
to the General Assembly breaking for the summer and early fall.

Explore Possibility of Passing Legislation to 
Increase Local Government License Plate 
Fees for Funding Infrastructure

A legislative proposal has been drafted. MORPC and the 
associations representing the counties, county engineers, 
townships and municipalities are trying to identify opportunities 
to get the language inserted into legislation.

Establish MORPC as Top MPO Resource 
for Ohio Congressional Delegation on 
Transportation Issues

The Transportation Reauthorization Bill, MAP-21, expires 
October 1, and MORPC is working with our Congressional 
delegation on the next version of the legislation which will likely 
be taken up next year by Congress, at the earliest.

Ensuring the Federal Highway Trust Fund 
issue is resolved by Aug. 1, 2014

Congress cleared an $11 billion, 10-month Highway Trust Fund 
patch less than three hours before the calendar flipped to Aug. 
1, the day DOT was set to start cutting highway reimbursements 
to states. MORPC provided regular input to our region’s 
Congressional delegation about the different proposals to fix 
the Highway Trust Fund problem in an attempt to achieve a 
long-term, stable solution. MORPC is also signing onto a joint 
letter with our community and business leaders thanking our 
Congressional members for the short-term fix which will last 
through May 2015 but urging Congress to act on a long-term 
solution. 

http://www.morpc.org
http://www.keglerbrown.com
http://www.morpc.org


www.morpc.org    |    www.keglerbrown.com 3

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Monthly Legislative Update

TOP ADVOCACY ITEMS

MORPC Joins Partners in Hosting Gubernatorial Event 
MORPC along with the Ohio Association of Regional Councils (OARC) and 8 other regional and statewide organizations 
are jointly hosting the 2014 Candidates Forum on Aug. 22 at the Hilton Easton Ballroom. This event will feature 
keynote addresses by Lt. Governor Mary Taylor and Gubernatorial Candidate and Cuyahoga County Executive Ed 
Fitzgerald. One of the first major events to focus on the 2014 Gubernatorial Race, the forum will allow both candidates 
to present their policy ideas about key issues facing Ohio in the areas of transportation, economic development, 
infrastructure and job growth. The luncheon program will feature a panel discussion of national transportation and 
economic development experts moderated by MORPC Executive Director William Murdock. Registration and more 
information available at www.morpc.org. 

General Assembly Summer Break
Ohio’s General Assembly is currently on summer break, with most Senators and Representatives back in their districts 
meeting with constituents and planning for the upcoming November elections. Legislative activities will remain on 
hold for the most part until the Assembly reconvenes in September, October, or even after the November 4 election.

State Ends FY14 with Nearly $800 Million Surplus
According to the Office of Budget and Management (OBM), Ohio ended FY14 on June 30 with a nearly $800 million 
surplus because of revenues exceeding estimates and state spending being kept below projections. The $800 million 
will be used as follows under various provisions in the mid-biennium review (MBR) legislation:

 » $91 million will be used to accelerate the across-the-board 10 percent income tax, with the effective date 
now retroactively set at Jan. 1, 2014.

 » $76 million is being used for “tax cuts for low- and middle-income Ohio taxpayers” through the increased 
Earned Income Tax Credit (EITC) and the personal exemption changes.

 » $229 million is being used to increase the tax cut for small business owners to 75 percent on their 2014 
income taxes.

 » $300 million was deposited into the Medicaid Reserve Fund, authorized by the MBR “to protect against 
unexpected costs arising from the federal health care reform.”

 
State Issued Bonds for Clean Energy Projects
In mid-July, the Ohio Ballot Board met for a third time and adopted as one issue a proposed constitutional amendment 
that would require the state to issue bonds to pay for clean energy projects. This latest submission sets a time period 
for an independent commission to begin spending the more $13 billion in state bond money once approved by the 
voters.

Election 2014
In November, Ohio electors will have the opportunity to vote for all statewide officeholders, including Governor/Lt. 
Governor, Attorney General, Secretary of State, Auditor and Treasurer.  In addition, all 99 seats in the Ohio House of 
Representatives, 17 of the 33 seats in the Ohio Senate, all 16 of Ohio’s seats in the U.S. House of Representatives 
and 2 Ohio Supreme Court seats are up for grabs this year. Click here for the full list of 2014 candidates.

 » Oct. 6 – Deadline for voter registration for Nov. 4 general election 

 » Nov. 4 – General election day

TOP NEWS IN OHIO

http://www.morpc.org
http://www.keglerbrown.com
http://www.morpc.org
http://hannah.com/Current Documents/Elections/Campaign2014.pdf


www.morpc.org    |    www.keglerbrown.com 4

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Monthly Legislative Update

HB483 MBR-OPERATION OF STATE PROGRAMS (AMSTUTZ R) To make operating and other appropriations and 
to provide authorization and conditions for the operation of state programs.
Current Status: 6/16/2014 - SIGNED BY GOVERNOR; Eff. 6/16/2014 Other Sections Eff. on Other Dates
State Bill Page: http://www.legislature.state.oh.us/bills.cfm?ID=130_HB_483

SB294 SAFE DRIVING AWARENESS MONTH (HUGHES J) To designate September as “Safe Driving Awareness 
Month.”
Current Status: 6/17/2014 - SIGNED BY GOVERNOR; Eff. 9/17/2014
State Bill Page: http://www.legislature.state.oh.us/bills.cfm?ID=130_SB_294

SB310 ENERGY REDUCTION REQUIREMENTS (BALDERSON T) To make changes to the renewable energy, 
energy efficiency, and peak demand reduction requirements and to create a study committee.
Current Status: 6/13/2014 - SIGNED BY GOVERNOR; Eff. 9/12/2014
State Bill Page: http://www.legislature.state.oh.us/bills.cfm?ID=130_SB_310

MORPC LEGISLATIVE TRACKING

STATE + FEDERAL GOVERNMENT UPDATE

State
Unemployment Compensation
On August 15, the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services (ODJFS) reported that Ohio’s unemployment rate rose 
to 5.7 percent in July from 5.5 percent in June, as the state lost 12,400 jobs over the month. On July 3, the U.S. Bureau 
of Labor Statistics (BLS) announced that the nation added 288,000 new jobs in June as the national unemployment 
rate dropped to 6.1 percent. 

Ohio to Host 2016 Republican National Convention
In mid-July, the Republican National Committee’s (RNC) Site Selection Committee announced that it has chosen 
Cleveland as the site of its 2016 national convention. The selection of Cleveland over Dallas will be the first time 
since 1936 that Ohio has hosted a convention for one of the two major parties. That year, Cleveland also hosted the 
convention, where Republicans nominated Alf Landon as their candidate.

Democratic National Committee Visits Columbus
Officials from the Democratic National Committee’s (DNC) Site Selection Team arrived in Columbus in early August 
to inspect the city as a possible DNC convention site in 2016. As DNC officials arrived to inspect Nationwide Arena, 
which would host convention activities, Democrats rallied outside of the arena to help make the case that both political 
conventions should choose Ohio. Other cities the DNC is considering for the 2016 convention include Birmingham, 
Alabama, Brooklyn, Philadelphia, and Phoenix.

http://www.morpc.org
http://www.keglerbrown.com
http://www.legislature.state.oh.us/bills.cfm?ID=130_HB_483
http://www.legislature.state.oh.us/bills.cfm?ID=130_SB_294
http://www.legislature.state.oh.us/bills.cfm?ID=130_SB_310


www.morpc.org    |    www.keglerbrown.com 5

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Monthly Legislative Update

STATE + FEDERAL GOVERNMENT UPDATE
County Profiles Available Online
The Center for Community Solutions has created an online resource of human services county profiles that highlight 
demographic projections, educational attainment, labor force participation, employment, income, poverty, and human 
services participation in each of Ohio’s 88 counties. Profiles are available for download alphabetically and by region 
at http://www.communitysolutions.com/county-profiles.

 
Federal 
Highway Trust Fund fix adopted in the nick of time:
Just before adjourning for Summer Break, Congress passed legislation that will preserve the solvency of the Highway 
Trust Fund until May of 2015 through the use of several revenue sources.  MORPC was very involved in urging our 
Congressional Delegation to pass a fix to this funding gap before it had a deleterious effect on roadway construction 
in our region.  The passage of the bill means that Congress is unlikely to enact a new transportation reauthorization 
bill to replace the expiring MAP-21 before next year. 

Invest in American Jobs Act Introduced
U.S. Sen. Sherrod Brown (D-OH) announced the introduction of the Invest in American Jobs Act, legislation that 
would “help ensure taxpayer dollars used in federal infrastructure projects support U.S. workers and businesses,” 
according to a release from the senator’s office. Specifically, Brown’s bill aims to improve existing “Buy America” 
preferences for U.S. Department of Transportation (USDOT) projects and ensure consistent coverage across federal 
infrastructure programs.

http://www.morpc.org
http://www.keglerbrown.com
http://www.communitysolutions.com/county-profiles


www.morpc.org    |    www.keglerbrown.com 6

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
Monthly Legislative Update

Provided by Kegler, Brown, Hill + Ritter
Capitol Square, Suite 1800 
65 East State Street
Columbus, OH 43215

Lloyd Pierre-Louis
Director
614-462-5477
lpierre-louis@keglerbrown.com

Tony Fiore
Of Counsel
614-462-5428
afiore@keglerbrown.com

S. Michael Miller
Of Counsel
614-462-5468
mmiller@keglerbrown.com

Steve Tugend
Director
614-462-5424
stugend@keglerbrown.com

Kitrina Spencer
Government Affairs Specialist
614-462-5400 ext. 264
kspencer@keglerbrown.com

Rusty Schuermann
Director
614-462-5440
rschuermann@keglerbrown.com

GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS TEAM

http://www.morpc.org
http://www.keglerbrown.com
http://www.keglerbrown.com/pierrelouis
http://www.keglerbrown.com/fiore
http://www.keglerbrown.com/michaelmiller
http://www.keglerbrown.com/tugend
http://www.keglerbrown.com/schuermann


Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Transportation Policy Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, July 17, 2014 

2:38 p.m. 

 

Transportation Policy Committee Members 

Karen Angelou 

Herb Asher 

Trudy Bartley 

Stacey Boumis 

Mike Bradley for W. Curtis Stitt 

Eric Brandon 

Susan Brobst 

Marilyn Brown 

Greg Butcher 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher 

Derrick Clay 

Ben Collins 

William Dorman 

Michael Ebert 

Steve Gladman 

Matt Greeson 

Marsha Grigsby 

Marian Harris 

Pamela Hykes-O'Grady 

Erik Janas 

Steve Kennedy 

Greg Lestini 

Mike Maleski 

Rory McGuiness 

Bonnie Michael 

Erin Miller 

Ellen Moss Williams 

Robert Myers 

Megan O’Callaghan 

Ray Ogden for Zach Woodruff 

Victor Paini 

Eileen Paley 

David Paul 

Eric Phillips 

Elissa Schneider 

Ashley Senn 

Thom Slack 

Joe Stefanov 

Scott Tourville

 

Commission Members 

Franklin Christman Terry Emery Jim Lenner 

 

Associate Members 

Jamie Grube 

John O'Meara 

Nikki Scarpitti 

Joe Weitz for Jeff Cabot 

 

 

Staff 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Tracy Clifton 

Nick Gill 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

Eileen Leuby 

Sarah McQuaide 

William Murdock 

Deborah Murphy 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Andy Taylor 

Thea Walsh 

Garth Weithman 

 

Guests 

Joe DiStefano, Calthorpe Associates 

Matt Peoples, Central Ohio Health Consortium 

Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter 

  

 

Chair Eric Phillips called the Transportation Policy Committee Meeting to order at 2:38 p.m. 

 

Monthly Progress Report – Thea Walsh, MORPC Transportation Systems & Funding Director 

 Thea Walsh thanked Steve Tugend for the Highway Trust Fund update. 

 Many team members attended the ODOT Planning Conference. This is the first time in eight years the 

conference was held. ODOT officials are not overly concerned about the congressional deadline for the 

Highway Trust Fund.  

 The City of Columbus recently passed a Safe Streets Ordinance that: 

o defines a bicycle as a vehicle by definition of vehicles 

o prohibits motorists from "left or right hooking" bicyclists 



Transportation Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 

July 17, 2014 

Page 2 

 
o protects bicyclists from being “doored” by motorists 

o affirms that motorists must pass cyclists at a safe distance (defined as at least three feet for 

cars and six feet for most commercial vehicles) 

 The Ohio Conference on Freight is Thursday-Friday, September 18-19, 2014 at the Hyatt Regency in 

Columbus. Now in its 8th year, this is the first time the Conference is being held in Central Ohio. The 

2014 theme is Driving Change in Global Logistics. Continuing Education Units can be earned for 

Professional Engineers, Planners and Economic Development Professionals. 

 Look for the new RideSolutions commercials airing on Time Warner cable.  

 Attributable Funds Applications Update 

o Received new requests for 35 projects; $144 million requested – approximately $27 million 

available. 

o Received updated applications for 31 projects; $188 million recommended (dollars in year of 

expenditure). 

o Final applications are due August 15, 2014. 

o The next Attributable Funds Committee meeting follows the September 10, 2014, 

Transportation Advisory Committee meeting. Agenda items include making funding level 

recommendations for updated projects and reviewing new projects. 

 Ohio Public Works Commission Update  

o District 3 (Franklin County) recently closed out $7 million in old projects and funded four 

additional projects from the last round. The next round applications and capital improvement 

reports are due September 15, 2014. 

o District 17 (Delaware, Fairfield, Knox, Licking, Morrow, and Pickaway Counties) next round 

applications are due October 4, 2014. 

o District 11 (Union County et al) pre-applications and capital improvement reports are due 

August 4, 2014. 

 

MTP Amendment – Nick Gill, MORPC Transportation Systems & Funding 

Nick Gill gave an update on the 2012-2035 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) Amendment. The 

amendment will be presented to the Transportation Policy Committee for approval at the September meeting. 

 

Consent Agenda 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, second by Erik Janas; motion 

passed.   

 

The Transportation Policy Committee Meeting adjourned at 2:48 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Rory McGuiness, Secretary 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2014JulyMTPAmend.pdf


 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Community Advisory Committee 

Transportation Advisory Committee 

Transportation Policy Committee 

 

FROM: 

 

Maria Schaper, Associate Planner 

Transportation Systems & Funding 

 

DATE: 

 

September 12, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-10-14: “AMENDING MORPC'S 2012-2035 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLAN TO INCLUDE TWO 

PROJECTS” 

  
Resolution T-10-14 is to amend the 2012-2035 Metropolitan Transportation Plan 

(MTP) to include two additional major widening projects.  Since the MTP adoption, 

two projects that ODOT has been developing as maintenance/reconstruction projects 

have changed in scope to become major widening projects.  These are: 

 

 Additional lane in each direction on Interstate 71 from Stringtown Road to  

Interstate 70.  The estimated cost of this project is $78 million. 

 Additional lane in each direction on Interstate 70 from Hilliard-Rome Road to 

Interstate 270.  The estimated cost of this project is $52.9 million. 

 
Because these have become major widening projects and are expected to begin 

construction before July 2016, they must be added to the 2012-2035 MTP to be 

eligible for the federal funds being applied to complete these projects.   

 

The need to amend the MTP was presented at previous meetings in March and July.  

The information regarding this amendment was made available for public review and 

comment for a 30-day period, beginning July 18, 2014 and ending August 22, 2014.  

The information included the description of the projects, fiscal constraint 

determination and air quality conformity determination.  No comments were 

received. 

 

The amendment and the revised MTP, including the revised project listing, maps, and 

other amendment-related changes, will be placed on the website once the resolution 

to amend the MTP has been approved. 

 

Attachment:  Resolution T-10-14 

 



RESOLUTION T-10-14 

 

“AMENDING MORPC'S 2012-2035 METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLAN TO INCLUDE TWO 

PROJECTS” 

 

WHEREAS, the Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) adopted the 

2012-2035 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) by Resolution T-2-12 and subsequently amended 

the plan by Resolutions T-17-12 and T-5-13; and 

 

WHEREAS, the MTP needs to be amended to include two new projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, the new projects are the major widening of I-71 from Stringtown Road to I-70 and the 

major widening of I-70 from Hilliard-Rome Road to I-270 as shown in the attachment; and 

 

WHEREAS, the fiscal balance of the MTP is maintained because the funding for the general 

maintenance of these roadway segments was previously included in the MTP via Project ID 1021, 

"Freeway/Arterial/Collector 2012-2020, Management and Operations/ITS;" and 

 

WHEREAS, the addition of these projects has been included in an update of the transportation air 

quality conformity analysis; and 

 

WHEREAS, the information regarding the additional projects, fiscal balance, and air quality conformity 

was made available for public comment and review for a 30-day period; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee at its meeting on September 8, 2014 and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee, at its meeting on September 10, 2014 recommended approval of 

this resolution by the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That MORPC amend the 2012-2035 MTP to add two major widening projects as shown 

in the attachment. 

 

Section 2. That the MTP project listing, map and relevant text be modified to reflect the 

information as shown in the Attachment. 

 

Section 3. That it affirms the conformity of the 2012-2035 Metropolitan Transportation Plan with 

the State Implementation Plan. 

 

Section 4.  That this Committee finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions of 

this Committee concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were taken 

in open meetings of this Committee. 
 

 

                                                                                

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

Attachment: Changes to the 2012-2035 Metropolitan Transportation Plan Project Listing and Map 

  



Resolution T-10-14 

Attachment: Changes to the 2012-2035 Metropolitan Transportation Plan Project Listing and Map 

 

Additions and Changes to the Project Listing 
I.D.                                                                                                                  Time                 Cost 

No. Project Description                                                                     Period*        ($Millions) 

Projects Added: 

1313 I-71 from Stringtown Road to I-70 – Major Widening                  3                  $78.0 

884 I-70 from Hilliard-Rome Road to I-270 – Major Widening           3                  $52.9 

1021 Freeway/Arterial/Collector 2012-2020 Management and Operations/ITS 6                1287.6 

*Time period “3”means construction estimated by 2020.  Time period “6” is ongoing. 

 

 

The MTP project map will be updated to include the projects shown in Figures 1 and 2 below.   
 

Project ID: 1313  I-71 from Stringtown Road to I-70 - Major Widening 

 

 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Project ID: 884  I -70 from Hilliard-Rome Road to I-270 – Major Widening 

 

 



 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Community Advisory Committee 

Transportation Advisory Committee 

Transportation Policy Committee 

 

FROM: 

 

Nick Gill, Assistant Director 

Transportation Systems & Funding  

 

DATE: 

 

September 12, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-11-14: "Amending the State Fiscal Year 

(SFY) 2014-2017 Transportation Improvement Program" 
 

Proposed Resolution T-11-14 will add or modify 16 projects on the SFY 2014-2017 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) with commitments totaling over $187 

million.  These changes are necessary to enable these projects to advance using the 

identified sources of funding and to maintain fiscal constraint.  In October, ODOT will 

ask the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and the Federal Transit 

Administration (FTA) to amend the Statewide TIP to include these changes.  

 

Attachment 1 to the resolution provides a description of the funding and scope of 

each project, including a description of the bicycle and pedestrian components.  The 

following projects in the amendment have a commitment of MORPC-attributable 

funds: 

 

 Columbus: Traffic Signal System, Phase C 

 Columbus: Hard Road Phase A, Major Widening 

 

Below is an explanation of the proposed changes to the TIP.  

 

Columbus requested additional MORPC-attributable funds for Phase C of its Traffic 

Signal System.  MORPC committed $8.95 million of CMAQ funds in the SFY 2014-

2017 TIP update.  Since then, Columbus received bids on a similar project, Phase B, 

that were higher than previously estimated, primarily because of rising prices for fiber 

optic cable.  Based on the last estimate available before the plan package is 

prepared for bidding, the city requested that MORPC increase its commitment to 

$11.55 million.  Because the CMAQ funds are collectively managed by eight Ohio 

metropolitan planning organizations (MPOs), MORPC has limited CMAQ funds 

available for this project.  The amendment would add $1.73 million of STP funds to 

fulfill the city’s request.  The project is scheduled to bid early in 2015. 

 

Columbus also requested in June additional MORPC-attributable funds for the Hard 

Road widening project.  It requested an additional $400,000 for right-of-way 

activities.  To prevent delays in acquisition and utility relocation, the funds were 



Resolution T-11-14 Memo 

Page 2 

 
 

advanced from the construction phase.  Based on the last estimate available 

before the plan package is prepared for bidding, the city requested an additional 

$300,000 for construction.  The resolution would increase MORPC’s total 

commitment by $700,000.  

 

Columbus received additional safety funds for preliminary engineering on a 

safety project on East Main Street, east of I-270.  The amendment would allow 

the additional funds to be authorized.  

 

COTA updated quantities and revised federal and local share cost estimates due 

to funding changes to purchase 38 buses.  COTA modified a cost estimate using 

local funds to make improvements to the computer room at 1333 Fields Avenue.  

Construction costs were updated for Northern Lights Transit Center off Cleveland 

Avenue using local funds.  The Dublin Park and Ride cost was modified and a 

Park and Ride Renovation project at locations to be determined was added using 

local funds. 

 

ODOT District 6 requested the following modifications to the TIP: 

 Change the scope of a project on I-70 between Hilliard-Rome Road and I-270 in 

Columbus from reconstruction to a major widening and increase funds for 

construction. 

 Add safety improvements on I-270 in Gahanna and Mifflin Township to the scope 

of a pavement rehabilitation project, remove from the scope pavement work on I-

670, and add the preliminary engineering phase to the TIP. 

 Increase construction funding to replace the Hudson Street bridge deck over I-71 

in Columbus. 

 Change the scope of a project in Grove City, Jackson Township, and Columbus on 

I-71 between Stringtown Road and SR 315 from major rehabilitation to a major 

widening and increase funds for construction. 

 Add a safety improvement project on US 33 between I-270 and Hamilton Road in 

Columbus.  

 Add two emergency slope repair projects, located in Liberty Township and in 

Delaware. 

 

 

NTG:NJV:bsn 

 

Attachments: Project Map 

 Proposed Resolution T-11-14 

 

 



")

")

")

§̈¦70

§̈¦270

§̈¦270

§̈¦670

§̈¦71

§̈¦71

£¤33

£¤23

£¤23

£¤40

£¤23

£¤33

£¤62

£¤36

£¤23

£¤40£¤40

£¤36

£¤62

£¤42

¬«656

¬«158

¬«47

¬«161

¬«229

¬«521

¬«665

¬«315

¬«37

¬«3

¬«750

¬«37

¬«4

¬«256

¬«674

¬«317 ¬«16

¬«3

¬«204

¬«710

¬«310

¬«104

¬«317

¬«203

¬«605

¬«745

¬«61

¬«257

WOODTOWN RD

TRENTONRD

COLLEGE AVE

MAINST

MINKSTREETRD

MA
IN 
ST

S S
EC
TIO
N L
IN
E R
D

MOCK RD

TAYLOR RD

FRANK RD

N C
LE
VE
LA
ND
 AV
E

ELDER LN

HORSES HOERD

N H
AM
ILT
ON
 RD

SUMMIT VIEW RD

P OLARISP KWY

LEWISCENTERRD

HOLTON RD

ECOLLEGEAVE

PA
RS
ON
S A
VE

CHESHIRE RD

GLICKR
D

LIB
ER
T Y
RD

N S
UN
BU
RY
 RD

SNOUFFER RD

DARBYCREEKDR

SULLIVANT
AVE

E MAIN ST

REFUGEE RD

W LANEAVE

COSGRAY RD

WILLIAMS RD

FISHINGER RD

WEST CASE RD

MOOBERRYST

HARD RD

TRABU
ERD

ROBERTS RD

HA
RR
ISO
NS
T

DUBLINRD

GEOR
GESV

ILLERD

WA
TK
IN
S R
D 
SW

KA
RL
 R
D

JOH
NST
OWN

RD

SHIER-RINGS RD

HOMERD

KING AVE

ORION PL

EASTONWAY
KIT
ZM
ILL
ER
RD

WHITERD

P OR
TR
D

HA
MI
LTO
N R
D

BIX BYR
D

ROWERD

SUN
BUR
Y R
D

CENTRAL COLLEGE RD

OAKLAND P ARK AVE

REFUGEERD

COOP ERRD

SMILEY RD

GA
NT
ZR
D

LAZELLE RD

CL
EV
EL
AN
D A
VE

RADNOR RD

ROHR RD

HOSKINSRD

CEN
TER
BUR
G

RD

AR
LIN
GT
ON
 AV
E

GR
AH
AM
 RD

WINCHESTERRDNW

HE
ND
RO
N 
RDNO
RT
ON
RD

S
WA
GG
ON
ER
RD

NORTONRD

MA
IZE
 RD

GROVES RD

LEE
 RD

SO
LD
3C
HW
Y

E WHITTIER ST

WINCHESTERP IKE

HARRIOTTRD

AS
KIN
S R
D CHATTERTONRD

EP OWELLRD

BO

WTO

WN
RD

E LIVINGSTON AVE

AGLERRD

ALKIRE RD

DE
MO
RE
ST
RD

FISHER RD

CO
UN
TY
RO
AD
60
5

HOME RD

BRIGGSRD

LITHOP OLISRD

ELONGST

MORSE RD

GROVE CITY RD

OP OS
SUM

RUN
RD

JO
YC
EA
VE

FA
IRW
OO
D A
VE

E 17TH AVE

BRANDRD

BAUSCHRD

ACKERMAN RD

E 2ND AVE

OHARRA RD

EB
RIG
HT
 RD

DELL
INGE
RRD

OT
IS 
ST

HYATTS RD

SH
OO
K 
RD

DERING AVE

DARBY ST

MA
PL
E C
AN
YO
NA
VE

SP
IND
LE
R 
RD

MCCUTCHEON RD

N S
PR
ING
 R
D

E HUDSON ST

P ARK RD

BETHEL RD

TU
SS
IC
ST
RE
ET
RD

W GRANVILLEST

BIG
RUN
SOUT

HR

D

E 5TH AVE
N LIBERTY ST

IND
IAN
OL
A A
VE

MCCOY RD

LISLE AVE

E 11TH AVE

RENSCHRD

MORSE RD

SMAINST

MCKINLEYAVE

CH
ES
HIR
E S
T

N L
IBE
RT
Y S
T

AVERY RD

N MAIN ST

E WEBER RD

CLARKSTATERD

S Y
EA
RL
ING
 RD

BUR NTP ONDRD

CLIMERD

S HIGH ST

FERRIS RD
CORRRD

RO
BI N
WO
OD
AV
E

HANOVERRD

LO
CK
BO
UR
NE
 RD

THURMAN AVE

OAK ST

N C
EN
TER
 ST

E COOKE RD

HA
UG
HN
 RD

BR
EN
TN
ELL
AV
E

E LINCOLN AVE

VANSVALLEYRD

HO
OV
ER
RD

LANCASTERAVE

BROADVIEW RD

INNIS RD

LOCKVILLE RD

P ITTSBURGHDR
HO
UK
 R
D

GEMINIP L

FIRSTGATEDR

WATKINS RD

P EACHBLOW RD

GREENLAWNAVE

LEONARDSBURGRD

W MOUND
ST

BR
UC
K 
ST

MAINRD

GORSUCH RD

DAVIDSON
RD

AIRP ORT RD

HAMILTONRD

CONCORD RD

REFUGEE RD NW

CEMETERY RD

S L
IBE
RT
Y S
T

OLIVEGREENRD

BUTTS RD

FR
ED
R IC
KS
RD

SU
MM
IT 
RD
 SW

HARRISBURGLONDONRD

RO
ME
 CO
RN
ER
S R
D

E NORTH BROADWAY

W SCHROCKRD

OBETZ RD

ROSEHILLRD

SCIOTODARBYCREEKRD

CU
RT
IS
RD

LUKENS RD

BLACKS RD SW

BA
RN
ET
T R
D

S H
IGH
 ST

HALL RD

CLIMERDN

KILBOURNER
D

MI
LN
OR
 RD

S H
IGH
 ST

P AN
HAND

LE
RD

CO
ND
IT 
RD

HAVENSCORNERSRD

DAVIDRD

DEMP SEY RD

CA
RR
OL
L-N
OR
TH
ER
N 
RD
 N
W

S E
E D
SR

D

S LIBERTY ST

BEULAH RD

HIL
L R
D

NOE
BIX BYRD

MILLSRD HARTFORD RD

BERLINSTATIONRD

LANE RD

SMITHSMILLRD

GROVEP ORTRD

PE
TE
R H
OO
VE
R R
D

MONKEY HOLLOW RD

ZUBER RD

CE
ME
TE
RY
 RD

HARTRD

RINGSRD

NE
FF
 RD

MARCY RD NW

DILDINERD

BLACKS RD

WALNUT ST
MU
IRFI
ELD

DR

WIL
SON
 RD

MEREDITH STATE RD

MOORERD

BRINDLERD

FONTANELLERD

HAYES RD

CL
AY
PO
OL
 RD

SLOUGH RD NW

WRIGHTRD

STOVER RD

FANCHER RD

BR
I TT
O N
P K
WY

DAV
ISR
D

GARDNERRD

N T
HR
EE
B 'S
&
KR
D

N C
OU
NT
Y L
IN
E R
D

NO
LD3C

HWY

OR
EG
ON
RD

TH
OM
AS
 RD

ELDE
RRD

N GALENA RD

COUNTY HOME RD

CU
BB
AG
E R
D

ST
AH
LR
D

LONDON LANCASTER RD

BEATTY RD

KROP P  RD

HOUCHARD RD

HEADLEYSMILLRD
SW

COOVER RD

STEAMTOWN RD

WILSON RD NW

JONESRD

TAWAYRD

ST
EIT
Z R
D

P ATT
ERSO

NRD

SJ
AM
ES
RD

HU
NT
LE
YR
D

N
HIGH

ST

SA WMILL
PKWY

OL
EN
TA
NG
YR
IV E
R
RD

ALTON
&DARBYCREEK

RD

COLERD

ST
EL
ZE
R R
D

FRANTZ
RD

AMITY RD

KENNY
RD

N HAGUE AVE

HO
LT
 RD

NY
EA
R L
ING
R D

SA
WM
ILL
 RD

AM
AN
DA
-N
OR
TH
ER
N 
RD
 N
W

BA
BB
ITT
 RD

MI
NK
ST
SW

RE
ED
 RD

WILCOX  RD

WO
RTH
ING
TON
RD

PIC
KE
RI
N G
TO
N
R D
N W

LON
DON
RD

AFRICA RD

DU
NH
AM
RD

LA
CK
EY
 OL
D S
TAT
E R
D

TR
EM
ON
T R
D

N C
AS
SA
DY
 AV
E

TR
OY
 RD

OST
RAN
DER
RD

GE
ND
ER
 RD

LITTLE TURTLE WAY

WARRENSBURGRD

RE
YN
O L
DS
BU
RG
-N
EW
AL
BA
NY
RD

LIN
W O
RT
HR
D

LEAP RD

HILL IAR DR OMERD

TRUEMANBLVD

GA
L L
OW
AY
RD

S
UN
BU
RY

RD

FLI
NT
 RD

CO
UR
TR
IGH
T R
D

SGALENARD

AL
TO
N
RD

MI
L L
ER
-PA
UL
RD

ALUM
C REEKDR

N WILSON RD

EM ERALD
P KWY

WALKERRD

P OST RD

BR
ICE
 RD

N W
ES
T S
T

S O
LD
 ST
AT
E R
D

SMOTHERS RD

LONGRD

ST
YG
LE
R R
D 
N

SS
P R
ING
RD

N J
AM
ES
 R
D

P ONTIUS RD

N
OL
DS
TAT
ER
D

BO
WE
N R
D

SCHLEP P I RD

AV
ER
Y R
D

LEP P ERT RD

ELLIOTTRD
RED

BA
NK
RD

MC
NA
UG
HT
EN
 RD

LOTT
RD

ASHLEY
RD

MA
RLA
NE

DR

RIC
HA
RD
SO
N R
D

LAW
RE
NC
E
RD

N W
AG
GO
NE
R R
D

CE
DA
R H
ILL
 RD
 NW

U L
RY
RD

BO
WE
N R
D N
W

SC
HO
TT
 R
D

CAR
TE
R'S
CO
RN
ER
RD

BIG
GE
RT
RD

HARLEM
RD

P ENNRD

YO
RK
 RD
 SW

DELAWARE

DELAWARE

FA
IRF
IEL
D

LIC
KIN
G

FR
AN
KL
IN

DELAWARE

FRANKLIN
26

75

1139 2675

27
52

273

1139 2904

2922

OSTRANDER

SHAWNEE
HILLS

ASHLEY

LITHOPOLIS

PATASKALA

SUNBURY

GALENA

LOCKBOURNE

GROVEPORT

REYNOLDSBURG

GAHANNA

MARBLE
CLIFF

BEXLEY

WHITEHALL

RIVERLEA

WORTHINGTON

URBANCREST

VALLEYVIEW

HARRISBURG

NEW
ALBANY

CANAL
WINCHESTER

DUBLIN

GROVE
CITY OBETZ

UPPER
ARLINGTON

GRANDVIEW
HEIGHTS

PICKERINGTON

BRICE

MINERVA
PARK

HILLIARD

COLUMBUS

POWELL

DELAWARE

WESTERVILLE

2448

2920

2921

The inform a tion shown on this m a p  is c om p iled from va rious
sourc es a va ila b le to us whic h we b elieve to b e relia b le.
n:\a rc gis\core\tip \2014_2017\tip  a m ndm t t-11-14.m xd a ug14

This m a p  p rep a red in coop era tion with the U.S. Dep a rtm ent of
Tra nsp orta tion’s Federa l Highwa y Adm inistra tion a nd Federa l
Tra nsit Adm inistra tion, the Ohio Dep a rtm ent of Tra nsp orta tion,

a nd loc a l c om m unities.

2752

BRYDEN RD

VINEST

PA
RS
ON
S A
VE

NO
H I
O A
VE

MOOBERRYST
E FULTON ST

E LONG ST

JACKGIBBSBLVD

CH
AM
PIO
N A
VE

FAIR AVE

E NAGHTEN ST

E WHITTIER STREINHARD AVE

S C
HA
MP
IO
N A
VE

COLE ST

TAY
LO
R A
VE

S O
HI
O A
VE

E TOWN ST

JAE
GE
R S
T

FREBIS AVE

MARCONI BLVD

S 1
8T
H S
T

SA
INT
 CL
AIR
 AV
E

STIMMEL RD

E RICH ST

MI
LL
ER
 AV
E

MOHAWKST

THURMAN AVE

LO
CK
BO
UR
NE
 RD

S CENTRAL AVE E MOUND ST

HAMILTON AVES DAVIS AVE

S FRONT ST

OAK ST

S SOUDER AVE

STARLING
ST

N CENTRAL AVE

W WHITTIERST

W RICH ST

N FRONT ST

W MOUNDST

S 3RD ST

GREENLAWNAVE

BR
OW
N 
RD

BR
UC
K 
ST

THOMAS 
AVE

W LIVINGSTON AVE

HARMON AVE

GR
AN
DV
IEW

A V
E

TW INR
IVE

RS
DR

NE
IL 
AV
E

¬«3
¬«315

£¤62

£¤33

£¤23
£¤40

§̈¦670

§̈¦71

§̈¦70

DOWNTOWN   COLUMBUS

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission
111 Liberty Street

Columbus, Ohio 43215
614.228.2663

September 2014

Please check www.morpc.org for
updates to this map and project listing.

SFY 2014-2017
Transportation Improvement Program

Resolution T-11-14
Am endm ent to the TIP
P rojec t Loc a tion Ma p

Ohio Location Map

LE
GE

ND

Major Widening
New Road

New Interchange
Minor Widening/Safety Improvement

Interchange Modification
Intersection Modification

Maintenance/Resurfacing
Bridge Repair/Replacement

Traffic Signal Upgrade
Streetscape/Study/Other
Bikeway/Sidewalk/Transit
Streetscape/Study/Other

MORPC Project Identification

Construction Phase
FY 2014 - 2017

Construction Phase
after FY 2017

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââââ

#*

!(

!(

#*

!(

")

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââââ

!(

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ ââââ

(Construction not part of TIP)

")

")

")

ââ ââ ââ ââ ââ

Planning Area

100 100100 100 100 100100 100

#*#*

±
0 3 6

Miles

ID Project
102 Signa ls P ha se C

Unmapped Projects



RESOLUTION T-11-14 

 

“AMENDING THE STATE FISCAL YEAR (SFY) 2014-2017 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAM” 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

(MORPC) adopted the SFY 2014-2017 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) by Resolution T-5-

13; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Columbus has requested the modification of three projects on the 2014-2017 

TIP as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Central Ohio Transit Authority has requested the modification of five projects and the 

addition of one project on the 2014-2017 TIP as shown in Attachment 1; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation has requested the addition and modification of 

projects on the 2014-2017 TIP as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the projects are consistent with the transportation policies, plans, and programs, 

including the most recent Metropolitan Transportation Plan adopted by the Transportation Policy 

Committee; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee at its meeting on September 8, 2014 and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee at its meeting on September 10, 2014, recommended approval 

of this resolution to the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the MORPC SFY 2014-2017 TIP be amended to include the project information 

as shown in Attachment 1. 

 

Section 2. That it affirms that the fiscal balance of the SFY 2014-2017 TIP is maintained. 

 

Section 3. That the determination of conformity between the TIP and the State Implementation 

Plan (SIP) is hereby reaffirmed, as the projects are exempt from conformity 

requirements or have been included in the most recent air quality conformity 

approval. 

 

Section 4. That this resolution will be transmitted to ODOT and all local agencies listed as 

sponsoring agencies in Attachment 1 for appropriate action. 

 



Resolution T-11-14 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Section 5. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal 

deliberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption 

of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee.  

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

_________________________________________  

Date 

 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

 

Attachment: Amended Project Information for the SFY 2014-2017 TIP 



Resolution T-11-14

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: Columbus PID: 14522 TIP ID: 102 MTP ID:  1264

Project Type(s): Signalization Air Quality: E

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-SGNL-Phase C Length (mi.):

CON $9,819,319CMAQ-M2015 MORPC Funds

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

Signals Phase C, Signalization, Continue transition of the Columbus Traffic Signal System from coaxial to fiber-optic 

communications network recommended in the CTSS study. Construct fiber-optic network along the arterials and 

replace signal controllers.

ADA curb ramps. At some intersections, a signal rebuild will be necessary, which includes curb ramps, ped signal 

head, and ped push button.

None. No change to the vehicle detection equipment included in project.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

CON $1,730,681STP-M2015 MORPC Funds

CON $750,000Local2015

Total: $12,300,000

Agency: Columbus PID: 17585 TIP ID: 273 MTP ID:  131

Project Type(s): Major Widening/Bicycle Lanes Air Quality: SA

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-CR061-01.100 Length (mi.): 1.2

ROW $2,160,000STP-M2014 MORPC Funds - Cap Amount

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

Hard Rd Phase A from Sawmill Rd to Smoky Row Rd, Major Widening/Bicycle Lanes from 2 to 5 lanes, environmental 

work under PID #11079.

Sidewalk on 2 sides.  2.4 mi. added to ped network.

Bicycle lanes.  1.2 mi. added to bike network.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

ROW $618,720Local2014

CON $9,371,668STP-M2015 MORPC Funds

CON $5,558,283Local2015

Total: $17,708,671

Tuesday, September 02, 2014 Page 1 of 6

Funds in FYs prior to 2014 are not included in this report nor in the 2014-2017 TIP.



Resolution T-11-14

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: Columbus PID: 97197 TIP ID: 2904 MTP ID:  992

Project Type(s): Safety Improvement Air Quality: E

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-US040-22.16 Length (mi.): 0.11

PE ENVIR $261,383HSIP2015

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

E Main St from I-270 to McNaughten Rd, Safety Improvement, Reconstruct signal and convert right-turn lane to a 

through lane eastbound.

Sidewalk on 2 sides. South side - from McNaughten Road to Manor Drive.

North side - from the existing sidewalk 250' east of McNaughten Road to the Reynoldsburg corp line. 0.22 mi. added 

to ped network.

None. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

PE ENVIR $29,043Local2015

PE DD $38,326HSIP2015

PE DD $4,258Local2015

Total: $333,009

Agency: COTA PID: 89978 TIP ID: 2004 MTP ID:  773

Project Type(s): Transit Purchase Air Quality: E

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA 2015-Bus Length (mi.):

PURCH $6,982,144SEC 53072015

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA 2015 Bus Replacement 35' or 40', Transit Purchase, CNG 18 Buses - 11.12.01

Not Applicable. 

Bicycle racks. on buses

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

PURCH $1,745,537Local-Transit2015

Total: $8,727,681

Agency: COTA PID: 90300 TIP ID: 2436 MTP ID:  12

Project Type(s): Transit Expansion Capital Air Quality: SA

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA 2015 Bus-Expansion Length (mi.):

OTHER $5,818,455SEC 53072015

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA 2015 Bus Expansion, Transit Expansion Capital,  40' CNG Bus Buy 20 Buses (11.13.01)

Not Applicable. 

Bicycle racks. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

PURCH $1,925,227SEC 53072015

PURCH $481,307Local-Transit2015

OTHER $1,454,613Local-Transit2015

Total: $9,679,602

Tuesday, September 02, 2014 Page 2 of 6

Funds in FYs prior to 2014 are not included in this report nor in the 2014-2017 TIP.



Resolution T-11-14

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: COTA PID: 92570 TIP ID: 2588 MTP ID:  12

Project Type(s): Transit Activity Air Quality: E

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA Northern Lights Transit Center- Length (mi.):

PE $270,000Local-Transit2015

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA Northern Lights Transit Center, Transit Activity, Location to be determined  11.33.04

Yes - Type to be determined. 

Yes - Type to be determined. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

ROW $1,559,704Local-Transit2015

CON $1,200,000Local-Transit2016

Total: $3,029,704

Agency: COTA PID: 95348 TIP ID: 2816 MTP ID:  773

Project Type(s): Transit Activity Air Quality: E

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA Computer Room-Liebert Length (mi.):

PURCH $85,000Local-Transit2015

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA 1333 Fields - Computer Room Replacement, Transit Activity, 1333 Fields - Computer Room Liebert 

Replacement

No information provided by sponsor.

No information provided by sponsor.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Total: $85,000

Agency: COTA PID: 96849 TIP ID: 2865 MTP ID:  773

Project Type(s): Transit Activity Air Quality: E

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTA Dublin Park and Ride- Length (mi.):

CON $4,879,220Local-Transit2017

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA Dublin Park and Ride, Transit Activity, 11.33.04

Yes - Type to be determined. 

Yes - Type to be determined. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Total: $4,879,220

Tuesday, September 02, 2014 Page 3 of 6

Funds in FYs prior to 2014 are not included in this report nor in the 2014-2017 TIP.



Resolution T-11-14

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: COTA PID: 98839 TIP ID: 2923 MTP ID:  773

Project Type(s): Transit Replacement Capital Air Quality: E

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-COTAPark & Ride-Renovations Length (mi.):

CON $1,437,000Local-Transit2017

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

COTA Park & Ride Renovations, Transit Replacement Capital, at various locations to be determined

No change to existing conditions. 

No change to existing conditions. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Total: $1,437,000

Agency: ODOT 6 PID: 25594 TIP ID: 1139 MTP ID:  884

Project Type(s): Major Widening/Resurfacing Air Quality: SA

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-IR070-03.410 Length (mi.): 4.19

CON $10,000,000GARVEE2016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

I-70 from 0.41 mi W of Alton & Darby Creek Rd to 0.34 mi W of Wilson Rd, Major Widening/Resurfacing, add 

auxiliary lanes from Hilliard-Rome to I-270. Resurfacing to project limits. Overlay one pair of bridges. Redeck/widen 3 

pairs of structures.

No change to existing conditions. 

No change to existing conditions. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

CON $20,507,000Bond2016

CON $1,598,400NHPP2016

CON $21,363,600State2016

Total: $53,469,000

Agency: ODOT 6 PID: 84620 TIP ID: 2675 MTP ID:  1021

Project Type(s): Safety Improvement/Minor Pavement Rehabi Air Quality: E

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-IR270-31.70 Length (mi.): 5.24

PE ENVIR $432,000IM2015

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

I-270 from S of Sunbury Rd to Big Walnut Cr, Safety Improvement/Minor Pavement Rehabilitation, Pavement 

preservation and resurfacing to project limits. Widen I-270 from I-670 to Big Walnut Cr to eliminate inside merge 

from I-670 EB to I-270 SB.

No change to existing conditions. 

No change to existing conditions. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

PE ENVIR $360,000HSIP2015

PE ENVIR $88,000State2015

Total: $880,000

Tuesday, September 02, 2014 Page 4 of 6

Funds in FYs prior to 2014 are not included in this report nor in the 2014-2017 TIP.



Resolution T-11-14

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: ODOT 6 PID: 85688 TIP ID: 2448 MTP ID:  1020

Project Type(s): Bridge Deck Replace Air Quality: E

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-IR071-21.260 Length (mi.): 0.1

CON $202,320HBP2015

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

Hudson St at I-71, Bridge Deck Replace, bridge over I-71.

Replace existing facilities. 6' sidewalks on both sides. 0.1 mi. added to ped network.

Shared-lane markings/Sharrows.  0.1 mi. added to bike network.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

CON $2,023,200NHPP2015

CON $247,280State2015

Total: $2,472,800

Agency: ODOT 6 PID: 93497 TIP ID: 2752 MTP ID:  1313

Project Type(s): Major Widening Air Quality: SA

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-IR071-09.78 Length (mi.): 5.48

CON $60,000,000GARVEE2016

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

I-71 from Stringtown Rd to SR-315, Major Widening, Re-deck and rehab 5 pairs of mainline structures.

Other. Plan to accommodate future shared-use paths along Frank Rd and Greenlawn Ave under I-71.

Other. Plan to accommodate future shared-use paths along Frank Rd and Greenlawn Ave under I-71.

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

CON $11,500,000State2016

Total: $71,500,000

Agency: ODOT 6 PID: 98111 TIP ID: 2922 MTP ID:  1021

Project Type(s): Safety Improvement Air Quality: E

Co-Route-Sec: FRA-US033-24.26 Length (mi.): 1.86

PE ENVIR $332,500HSIP2015

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

US-33 from I-270 (SW Outerbelt) to Hamilton Rd (SR-317), Safety Improvement, Build an auxiliary lane between the 

ramps for Hamilton Rd and the ramps for EB I-270 in both directions of US-33; widening of Big Walnut Creek bridge; 

multi-lane resurfacing.

No change to existing conditions. 

No change to existing conditions. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

PE ENVIR $161,800NHPP2015

PE ENVIR $40,450State2015

Total: $534,750

Tuesday, September 02, 2014 Page 5 of 6

Funds in FYs prior to 2014 are not included in this report nor in the 2014-2017 TIP.



Resolution T-11-14

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: ODOT 6 PID: 98709 TIP ID: 2920 MTP ID:  1021

Project Type(s): Maintenance Activity Air Quality: E

Co-Route-Sec: DEL-SR315-01.30 (Emer. C) Length (mi.): 0.21

CON $220,000State2015

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

SR-315 at SR-750, Maintenance Activity, Install shotcrete facing on recently built retaining walls to prevent erosion 

and stabilize the walls. This is a Type C emergency project.

No change to existing conditions. 

No change to existing conditions. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Total: $220,000

Agency: ODOT 6 PID: 98711 TIP ID: 2921 MTP ID:  1021

Project Type(s): Maintenance Activity Air Quality: E

Co-Route-Sec: DEL-US042-09.69 (Emer. C) Length (mi.): 0.04

CON $220,000State2015

State Fiscal Year Phase Source Amount

US-42 at SW of Horseshoe Rd, Maintenance Activity, Repair embankment slip next to Greenwood Lake which is 

compromising US 42 pavement. Type C Emergency project.

No change to existing conditions. 

No change to existing conditions. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

Total: $220,000

Summary of Funding Sources

Source Description Total Amount

Bond State-Issued Bonds $20,507,000

CMAQ-M Congestion Mitigation/Air Quality Improvement, Attributable to MORPC $9,819,319

GARVEE Federal Advance Construction Paid with State Bonds $70,000,000

HBP Highway Bridge Program $202,320

HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program $992,208

IM Interstate Maintenance $432,000

Local Local Public Agency Funds $6,960,304

Local-Transit Local Public Transit Authority $13,112,381

NHPP National Highway Performance Program $3,783,400

SEC 5307 Transit Formula Block Grants $14,725,826

State State Transportation Funds $33,679,330

STP-M Surface Transportation Program, Attributable to MORPC $13,262,349

Grand Total $187,476,437

Tuesday, September 02, 2014 Page 6 of 6

Funds in FYs prior to 2014 are not included in this report nor in the 2014-2017 TIP.



 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Community Advisory Committee 

Transportation Advisory Committee 

Transportation Policy Committee 

 

FROM: 

 

Thea Walsh, Director 

Transportation Systems & Funding 

 

DATE: 

 

September 12, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-12-14: MORPC’S SUPPORT OF THE CENTRAL 

OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY’S CLEVELAND AVENUE BUS RAPID TRANSIT 

PROPOSAL TO FTA FOR §5309 NEW STARTS FUNDING “ 

  
Resolution T-12-14 documents MORPC’s support of COTA’s Cleveland Ave Bus Rapid 

Transit (BRT) project and COTA’s funding request to the Federal Transit 

Administration for §5309 New Starts Funding.  If funded this service will transport 

riders between downtown Columbus and Polaris Parkway/Africa Road stopping at 62 

designated stations in both directions along the way.  

 

As this project has progressed over the past ten months through project 

development, it is exciting to see how improved travel times, higher frequencies of 

service, transit signal priority, real-time next bus arrival information, enhanced 

passenger waiting areas and other customer amenities will all serve to provide better 

mobility options to area residents and visitors alike. 

 

Cleveland Avenue is one of COTA’s highest ridership corridors, characterized by a 

large population of transit dependent residents.  The need to better connect 

residents to major employment centers, medical facilities and other important 

destinations is critical to the future success of our community.  As new transit 

advancements like BRT are deployed, improved mobility and increased 

independence will be a welcome asset to meet growing demand and build a better 

and more livable community.   

 

MORPC has been involved in the planning and development process and looks 

forward to the implementation of BRT service.   As BRT offers many benefits 

described above, we urge the Federal Transit Administration to continue to support 

COTA’s efforts to bring this project to fruition.   

 

As our community continues to grow, MORPC supports COTA in these efforts to 

expand public transit options in the Northeast Corridor.  

 

Attachment:  Resolution T-12-14  

 



RESOLUTION T-12-14 

 

“MORPC’S SUPPORT OF THE CENTRAL OHIO TRANSIT AUTHORITY’S CLEVELAND AVENUE BUS RAPID 

TRANSIT PROPOSAL TO FTA FOR §5309 NEW STARTS FUNDING” 

 

WHEREAS, the Northeast Corridor, which includes the #1 Cleveland Local, one of the Central Ohio 

Transit Authority’s (COTA’s) busiest local routes, was identified by COTA Planning staff as a high 

priority for expanded bus service; and 

 

WHEREAS, in December 2010, COTA was awarded a $300,000 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 

Livability Funding Opportunity - Section 5339 Alternatives Analysis Program Grant, to evaluate and 

select the best options of new or expanded transit service in the Northeast Corridor; and 

 

WHEREAS, in September 2011, an alternatives analysis was initiated in the Northeast Corridor which 

assessed a wide range of public transportation alternatives, costs and benefits for a Bus Rapid 

Transit (BRT) line along Cleveland Avenue in June 2012; and 

 

WHEREAS, in April 2012, COTA adopted a 2012-2035 Long-Range Transit Plan that included 

expanded bus service including BRT in the Cleveland Avenue corridor; and 

 

WHEREAS, in May 2012, MORPC adopted the 2012-2035 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP), 

which incorporated the transit expansion strategies included in the COTA Long-Range Transit Plan, 

and 

 

WHEREAS, in April 2013, COTA began Project Development on the Cleveland Avenue BRT to evaluate 

and determine environmental impacts, station placements, bus types, and other capital and 

operating characteristics; and 

 

WHEREAS, in September 2013 MORPC clarified the inclusion of COTA’s Cleveland Avenue BRT from 

Downtown Columbus to Polaris Parkway in MORPC’s 2012-2035 MTP; and 

 

WHERAS, COTA’s Cleveland Avenue BRT project was submitted for environmental review, receiving 

approval from the Federal Transit Administration in July 2014; and  

 

WHEREAS, COTA staff has solicited and received public comment through numerous meetings with 

stakeholders, community leaders, property owners and the general public; conducted online surveys, 

and held corridor public involvement meetings during the Project Development process; and 

 

WHEREAS, COTA has environmental clearance and has nearly completed (60%) preliminary design 

and submitted a proposal to FTA for federal funding to proceed with final design and 

implementation; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee at its September 8, 2014 meeting and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee at its September 10, 2014 meeting recommended adoption of 

this resolution by the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

 

 



Resolution T-12-14 

Page 2 

 
Section 1. That it supports COTA’s proposal to FTA for §5309 New Starts funding for the 

Cleveland Avenue Bus Rapid Transit from Downtown Columbus to Polaris Parkway 

primarily via Cleveland Avenue. 

 

Section 2. That MORPC will continue to work with COTA to support final design and 

implementation of the BRT.  

 

Section 3. That this committee finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions of 

this committee concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were taken 

in open meetings of this committee. 
 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Date 

 

Attachment: COTA Cleveland Avenue BRT Update 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Project Schedule

20142013 2015 2016 2017

Nov 2013–Sep 2014

Preliminary design,
Engineering &
Environmental
Clearance Oct 2014–

Feb 2015

Federal Transit
Administration
Review

Dec 2015–
Mar 2016

Federal Transit
Administration
Review

Apr 2015–Nov 2015

Final
Design Jun–

Aug 2017

System
Test

Sep 2017

BRT
Service
Begins

Apr 2016–May 2017
Construction

• FTA Approved Project 
Development–Apr 2013

• Consultant Selected–Oct 2013
• COTA Board Approval of 

NEPA Study–May 2014
• FTA Approval of NEPA Study 

(Categorical Exclusion)–Jul 2014

• FTA Publishes New Starts 
Final Report–Feb 2015

• FTA Project Construction 
Grant Agreement–Feb 2016

September 2014
Page 1 of 2

(see reverse side for more information)

Did you know?
Inter-agency collaboration consists of the FTA, cities of Columbus 
and Westerville, Franklin County, Clinton and Blendon Townships, 
Village of Minerva Park, ODOT and MORPC.

The preliminary project cost – which will continue to be revised 
through �nal design – is $39.4 million, of which COTA is seeking 
80% or $31.5 million in grant funding from FTA’s Section 5309 
New Starts program.

BRT Project Update
Cleveland Avenue

Project Bene�ts
• Improved transit service

• Improved mobility and reliability in a 
congested corridor 

• Travel times savings of approximately 
21 percent

• More travel options for growing 
transit-dependent populations

• Improved pedestrian access and safety

• Creates opportunities for economic 
development within the corridor

• A projected 15-20 percent increase in 
ridership in the �rst �ve years

The Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA) is conducting preliminary design, engineering and environmental clearance of the 
proposed Cleveland Avenue Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)/Enhanced Bus Service Project. During project development, the proposed project 
received environmental review approval from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) on July 25, 2014 indicating no signi�cant 
impacts anticipated for the project. In addition, COTA informed and engaged participation on key elements including working closely 
with project stakeholders and the public to develop a unique BRT identity that will be carried forward into future service of this BRT 
corridor as well as potential future corridors. The new identity for the BRT service includes the new name, CMAX, and a logo that 
were developed by using the �ndings from formal 
research as well as soliciting feedback from our 
employees and Board of Trustees. Additional branding 
will continue for the bus and pylon marker designs.

Project Overview
CMAX will transport riders between Downtown 
Columbus and Polaris Parkway/Africa Road,
stopping at 62 designated stations in both directions 
along the way. 

CMAX will also complement Local Line 1 Cleveland, 
COTA’s second busiest line, and connect with existing 
bus routes as well as other intercity services to 
provide a seamless transit system. 

OPERATING PLAN
• CMAX will operate on High Street in dedicated bus 

lanes during rush hours in Downtown Columbus

• Traf�c signals will be coordinated to provide 
priority for BRT buses between Fort Hayes and 
SR-161, reducing travel times

• On weekdays 10-minute service frequency during 
peak hours and 15-minute service frequency
during off-peak hours between Downtown 
Columbus and SR-161, and on weekends 30-minute 
service frequency

• Approximately 21 percent travel time savings with 
estimated 35-39 minutes trip time between 
Downtown and SR-161, and 48-56 minutes between 
Downtown and Polaris Parkway/Africa Road

• CMAX will operate seven days a week



Conceptual street view design of a CMAX 
station pylon with an existing COTA shelter

COST TO RIDE
When service begins, passengers will pay the same to ride CMAX as 
they would regular bus service.

PUBLIC ARTS PROGRAM
COTA will include a Public Arts Program within the CMAX stations and
will seek public assistance in its development including:

• Establishing potential themes and guidelines

• Identifying potential locations along the corridor 

CMAX AND OTHER TRAFFIC
CMAX buses will operate within existing traf�c lanes along the 
corridor. Traf�c signals will be coordinated along Cleveland Avenue 
between Fort Hayes and SR-161 to allow buses priority through 
intersections if buses are running off schedule. This will improve 
on-time performance. With fewer stops, CMAX travel times can be 
reduced by 21% over current Local Line 1 Cleveland trip times.

CMAX VEHICLES
Fourteen 40 foot, low �oor buses with compressed natural gas (CNG) propulsion will be provided for CMAX along the corridor. 
These buses will be equipped with Global Positioning Satellite (GPS) to tie into the next-bus arrival times system along with 
on-board announcements for next station stops. 

CMAX STATION AMENITIES

Get Involved!

September 2014
Page 1 of 2

COTABRT@cota.com 33 N. High Street
Columbus, OH 43215

www.cotabrt.com (614) 228-1776
TTY/TTD (614) 275-5878

Stay Connected With COTA!
COTABus| @COTABus

 Amenities may be provided at locations depending on land availability and demand.

   
  
 

 

  

Number of Stations 25 9 2 4 9 

Locations 

Abbott, 2nd, 17th, 24th, 
Hudson, Genessee, Weber, 

Huy, Northern Lights, 
Cooke, Lehner, Wallcrest 

& Northland Plaza 

Columbus St., 
5th, 11th, 

Oakland Park 
& Morse 

Northern 
Lights  

& Meijer 

Blendon 
Woods & 

Community 
Park 

Cooper,  
St. Ann’s, 

Main, Polaris 
& Africa 

  
Concrete loading & waiting 
surface 

     
Raised boarding area with 
tactile strip      

Sidewalk connection      
ADA ramps      
Distinctive pavement & 
crosswalks      

  
Indoor waiting area      
Shelter with bench & lighting      
Bench only 
 
 

     

Trash can      

 
Bicycle parking      

Public art     

Landscaping      

Park & Ride spaces      

 
CMAX marker & signage       
Real time arrival information      
COTA system map/paper 
Schedule 

     
Ticket vending machines      

BRT Project Update
Cleveland Avenue

Amenity Type A Type B

Transit 
Center / 
Park &
Ride

Type D Type E

Boarding Area & Connections

Shelter & Waiting Area

Surrounding Amenities

Customer Information



 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Officers and Board Members 
Transportation Policy Committee 
Transportation Advisory Committee 
Community Advisory Committee 
 

FROM: 

 

Thea J. Walsh, Director of Transportation Systems & Funding 

DATE: 

 

September 12, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-13-14: "ACCEPTING THE PWP COMPLETION 

REPORT FOR STATE FISCAL YEAR 2014" 
 

Annually, MORPC is required to submit a report to the Ohio Department of 

Transportation (ODOT) describing the work completed with federal planning funds 

provided to continue the metropolitan transportation planning process, as defined by 

MAP-21.   

 

For State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2014, the use of these funds was outlined in the SFY 

2014 Planning Work Program (PWP) adopted by Resolution T-6-13.  The PWP serves 

as the scope of work, the schedule, and the budget for the federally funded planning 

activities.   

 

The PWP included such activities as maintaining the TIP, continued delivery of 

projects using MORPC-attributable funds, initial work on the development of the 

2016-2040 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP), assistance on freeway and 

arterial studies such as the I-270/US 33 interchange project, support for safety and 

operations and management of the transportation system, and support for transit, 

bike and pedestrian planning.  The SFY 2014 PWP also included the continuation of 

ridesharing/demand reduction and air quality awareness activities.  As part of this 

scope of work MORPC also prepared the Public Involvement Plan, drafting the new 

smoothed urban area boundary as a result of the 2010 census, updating the 

functional classification system, distributing new bike maps, coordinating the JARC 

and New Freedom competitive selection process, developing the DATASOURCE and 

many other projects and activities that have been presented to you over the state 

fiscal year.   

 

A summary of the PWP activities is included as an attachment to the resolution.  A 

full report is available upon request.   

 

Resolution T-13-14 approves the completion report and requires that it is forwarded 

to ODOT.  

 

Attachment: Resolution T-13-14



   

RESOLUTION T-13-14 

 

“ACCEPTING THE PWP COMPLETION REPORT FOR STATE FISCAL YEAR 2014” 

 

WHEREAS, it is the role of the metropolitan planning organization (MPO) to help encourage, facilitate 

and provide a forum for regional, cooperative transportation planning and decision-making; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Work Program (PWP) is the document that outlines the work of the MPO, the 

use of regional transportation planning funds and the regional planning activities that will be done 

each state fiscal year; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Policy Committee adopted the SFY 2014 Planning Work Program (PWP) by Resolution 

T-6-13; and 

 

WHEREAS, the activities described in the PWP have been completed or carried over into SFY 2015 

and reported in the PWP Completion Report, a summary of which is attached; and 

 

WHEREAS, major products of the PWP have been presented previously; and 

 

WHEREAS, these products include the core work with the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP), 

the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and the continued delivery of projects using MORPC-

attributable funds, as well as the freeway and arterial studies, ‘major-new' projects, local traffic 

forecasting and continuing updates to the travel demand model, support for transit planning and 

ODOT planning studies, ITS, ridesharing/demand reduction, bike and pedestrian planning, safety 

planning and air quality awareness; and  

 

WHEREAS, ODOT requires approval of this PWP Completion Report by the Transportation Policy 

Committee as the Metropolitan Planning Organization; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee at its September 8, 2014 meeting, and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee, at its September 10, 2014 meeting recommended approval to 

the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the Transportation Policy Committee approves the PWP Completion Report for 

SFY 2014. 

 

Section 2. That this resolution and the PWP Completion Report be forwarded to the Ohio 

Department of Transportation for appropriate action. 

 

Section 3. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal 

deliberations and actions of the committee concerning and relating to the adoption 

of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee. 

 

 

       

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

             

Date 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

Attachment: Summary of Completion Report for the SFY 2014 Planning Work Program 



SUMMARY

FISCAL YEAR 2014 PLANNING WORK PROGRAM - FINAL

I.  Formula Funded Planning Program Projects

WORK ELEMENT

FUNDING SUMMARY

REPORT SUMMARY

$3,704,281Total Budget

$189,270Balance Remaining for SFY 2015 or later is

60113-002 Management & Operations Planning

A small amount of funding was carried over from FY13 to FY14.  See 60114-002 for 
Management & Operations planning activities.

$245,752Budget

$241,560Spent 6/30

60114-001 Short-Range Multimodal Transportation Planning

Worked with COTA's Mobility Advisory Board meeting. Completed MORPC, COTA 
and DATABus process to identify MORPC as FTA Section 5310 designated receipent 
of funding.
Organized monthly COTA/MORPC coordinattion meetings and quarterly transit 
forums. Assisted COTA in publicizing their transit system review. Also coordinated 
with COTA to publish COTA’s Service Change Public Meeting announcements and 
possible route change information. Worked with Rickenbacker area employers, the 
chamber, COTA and others to examine the workforce mobility challenges in that area. 

MORPC remained involved in non-motorized traffic count efforts.  Staff organized 
volunteer bicycle and pedestrian counting events and continues to maintain a library 
of count equipment for MORPC and partners’ uses.  Staff encourages partners to 
collect non-motorized traffic counts through educational outreach and involvement in 
their planning processes. 

Staff provided numerous educational opportunities related to Complete Streets: 
workshop at the Summit on Sustainability & the Environment, webinars, presentations 
to various audiences, and a Blind Walk Audit. 

Staff sat on the Technical Advisory Group for the Columbus Bicentennial Bikeways 
Plan process, and participated in several walk audits for Columbus City Schools' 
district-wide Safe Routes to School Plan.  Staff also coordinated with local 
jurisdictions and special interest groups on bike, pedestrian, and transit planning and 
data maintenance and updates.

Staff worked on various projects.  Staff coordinated with the City of Columbus and 
other partners to reprint and distribute the Columbus Metro Bike Map.  They began 
working with a consultant to do the Regional Sidewalk Inventory.  They also initiated 
the process to create an Active Transportation Plan by forming several advisory 
groups and beginning the first phase of the project, which is analyzing the active 
transportation network.  Staff finalized a Complete Streets project review process 
related to MORPC-attributable funding of projects.

$300,000Budget

$416,111Spent 6/30

ssaunders
Typewritten Text
Resolution T-13-14Attachment



60114-002 Management & Operations Planning

Information was gathered on the condition of the system, funding options and 
prepared strategies from federal, state and local resources for roads and bridges for 
staff use.  Pavement and bridge condition information was mapped.  Staff monitored 
ODOT’s Business Plan and Capital Programs Dashboard.  Reviewed ODOT’s multi-
year work plan report that includes future and past infrastructure condition ratings, and 
final and future cost estimates.  In addition, staff has been participating in ODOT's 
new asset management process development. 

The regional Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) group met three times and 
began discussions about updating the regional ITS architecture.  Guidance was 
received from FHWA and a workshop was being planned for August.. 

MORPC continues to educate governmental officials and the public about the freight 
industry.   MORPC continues to be involved with local and regional freight initiatives, 
including assisting the Columbus Regional Logistics Council's Freight Roadmap 
Refresh project.  Support is being provided for the City of Columbus JET task force.  
Specific work has been researching other airports' solutions to providing a multimodal 
terminal at the airport and connecting the airport to downtown Columbus.

$220,000Budget

$141,697Spent 6/30

60114-003 Safety Planning

In order to bring agency methods in line with national and state standards and 
practices, MORPC began discussions with ODOT on using SafetyAnalyst to improve 
High-Crash location methodology and other transportation planning analyses.

Staff testified in support of Columbus' Safe Streets Ordinance, which passed this past 
spring. 
Staff participated in meetings for the Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP), Traffic 
Records Coordinating Committee (TCC), Franklin County Safe Communities General 
Body Coalition, Columbus Area Pedestrian Safety (CAPS), Franklin County Fatality 
Review Board, Safe Routes to School project selection, and City of Columbus Large 
School District School Travel Plan.

Staff provided and promoted safety-related educational opportunities through Safe 
Routes to School forums and courses available through partnering agencies and 
programs.  Staff also received training by attending the Highway Safety Manual 
training, the ODOT Traffic Academy's Safety Studies course, and a course on 
Planning and Designing for Pedestrian Safety. 

Staff collected, analyzed, summarized, and reported on high-crash locations and 
crash statistics for the region at large, members, and per special requests.  Staff also 
worked on identifying safety countermeasures, and identifying and analyzing locations 
for countermeasures.

$170,000 ^Budget

$130,319Spent 6/30

^ Project continues beyond SFY 2014



60214-000 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and Implementation

Several amendments to the SFY 14-17 TIP requested by ODOT or local agencies 
were processed and approved.  Federally funded projects were coordinated with local 
agencies, ODOT and the Ohio Public Works Commission.  ODOT District staff 
scheduled quarterly meetings with local sponsoring agencies, their consultants, and 
MORPC staff.  Monthly reports on the status of the MORPC-attributable projects were 
provided.  MORPC, COTA and ODOT transit met quarterly to stay on top of transit-
specific TIP issues.

Projects submitted to ODOT for TRAC funding were summarized, presented to our 
committees and the public for comment, and a prioritized list provided to ODOT.

Management of regular MORPC-attributable funds continued.  Through a series of 
about 20 Attributable Funds Committee meetings and sub-committee meetings, the 
Principles and Procedures for management of MORPC-attributable funding were 
updated, including revised selection criteria.  Updates to previous commitments and 
initial applications were received. 

Work continued with the other seven large MPOs to develop a statewide process for 
selecting and managing projects to use CMAQ funding in response to ODOT's 
directive.  Evaluation criteria and application information was finalized in preparation 
of the first cycle over the summer and fall of 2014.

$295,000Budget

$282,919Spent 6/30

60513-002 Transportation Systems Analysis Techniques and Applications

A small amount of funding was carried over from FY 13 to FY 14.  See 60514-002 for 
Transportation Systems Analysis Techniques and Applications activities.

$284,939Budget

$284,320Spent 6/30

60514-001 Transportation Data and Surveillance

Inputs to the allocation model that MORPC uses for developing the socio-economic 
data that are used in the travel demand model were updated.  These include a review 
of economic development districts, environmentally sensitive areas, and availability of 
sanitary sewer.  In addition, an on-line map of existing land use coded to the parcel 
level was shared with local communities for their comments and edits.  Changes were 
incorporated into the base files.  A similar map of future land uses was also shared for 
community input.

MORPC hosts quarterly GIS User Group meetings, which are attended by 
approximately 40 GIS professionals from throughout the region.  During these 
meetings, sub-groups discuss topics such as professional development, data 
standards, technical tools, and data sharing.  MORPC also upgraded its GIS system.  
New internet-based web map tools are being developed.

The 2014 State of the Region report was published on the MORPC website.  This 6-
page summary includes statistics about transportation, demographics, economic 
development, development patterns, energy and housing characteristics.

$660,000Budget

$688,998Spent 6/30

60514-002 Transportation Systems Analysis Techniques and Applications

The regional travel demand model was maintained.  In conjunction with the ODOT 3-
C model update, work continued on refining networks and preparing other model 
inputs.  Active participation continued in the 3-C model development process with 
ODOT, the consultant and the other MPOs.  Assistance was provided to partnership 
with ODOT and the other big MPOs on applications for two advanced travel analysis 
tools in Round 4 of the SHRP2 (Strategic Highway Research Program), which would 
integrate DTA (Dynamic Traffic Assignment) into the new 3-C Model. 

Participation continued in the OSU/ODOT/COTA on-board transit survey through 
conference calls, email and phone call exchanges.  

During the data preparation for insight2050, improvements were made to the land use 
model, which would be used for the next MTP update.

$310,000Budget

$255,865Spent 6/30

^ Project continues beyond SFY 2014



61013-001 Long-Range Multimodal Transportation Planning

A small amount of funding was carried over from FY 13 to FY 14.  See 61014-001 for 
Long-Range Multimodal Transportation Planning activities.

$518,929Budget

$520,793Spent 6/30

61014-001 Long-Range Multimodal Transportation Planning

Progress made toward meeting the region’s transportation goals and targets 
established in the 2012-2035 MTP was monitored and reported in the MTP Report 
Card.  The need for an amendment to the 2012-2035 MTP was identified, and work 
on completing this amendment began, including reaching out to local governments to 
ensure all necessary projects were included in the amendment and work on the air 
quality conformity determination.

Development of the 2016-2040 MTP picked up.  Existing and future land use 
assumptions were reviewed and adjusted, and scenario planning efforts began as part 
of the insight2050 project.  Efforts to ready the regional travel demand model and 
coordination on statewide modeling activities also occurred.  The region’s 
transportation goals established in the 2012-2035 MTP  were reexamined and 
discussions on reaffirming these goals for the 2016-2040 Plan took place.   

Staff followed and participated in various ODOT planning activities, including progress 
on NCOS and innerbelt projects, the Far East Freeway Study, and the South 
Outerbelt Study.  Involvement as a stakeholder continued with regard to Access Ohio 
2040.

Work progressed on a new regional thoroughfare plan.  Data continued to be 
collected and methodologies developed for a new layered multimodal approach for 
the thoroughfare plan.

$480,000 ^Budget

$406,837Spent 6/30

61014-002 Transportation Public Involvement

The Community Advisory Committee met in July, September, October, November and 
December 2013 and January, February, March, April, May and June 2014.  
Informational items presented to CAC, TAC and Transportation Policy Committees 
included CMAQ Program, High Crash Lists, US 23/I-270 South Interchange, TIP, FTA 
§5310 Designation, Bike and Pedestrian studies, MTP Amendment, insight2050, 
COTA studies, Access Ohio, Port Columbus improvements and TRAC projects.

Resolutions were proposed and approved on the TIP, COTA, Delaware Transit, 
Planning Work Program, High-Speed Rail Service, and Certification of the 
Metropolitan Transportation Planning Process.

COTA provided information on the BRT, New Albany Park-n-Ride, Long-Range Plan
and service changes to the CAC.  MORPC placed this information on its website,
Facebook and in MORPC's electronic newsletter, Regional eSource.

Press releases, social media, Regional eSource and Transportation Connections 
discussed pedestrian safety, TRAC, the TIP, COTA service changes and BRT, bicycle 
and pedestrian activities, air quality, high-speed rail, 2014 Transportation Report 
Card, I-270/US 33 Interchange, and RideSolutions.

$169,661Budget

$95,382Spent 6/30

62524-000 Assistance to Public and Members

Approximately 200 requests for information were responded to in 2014.  This includes 
a significant number of traffic growth rate requests for traffic impact studies or local 
roadway improvements from local jurisdictions or consultants working on studies to 
submit to them.  A concept for accessing community profiles that includes basic socio-
economic and land use data was developed.

$50,000Budget

$50,210Spent 6/30

^ Project continues beyond SFY 2014



II.  Special Projects

WORK ELEMENT

FUNDING SUMMARY

REPORT SUMMARY

$2,546,621Total Budget

$1,511,312Balance Remaining for SFY 2015 or later is

66501-000

80% MORPC STP

Economic Impact of Trails

The University of Minnesota was chosen to be the project's lead consultant, and a 
Steering Committee was formed to guide the process.

Nearly 50 percent of the trail segment counts were completed by June.  The 
consultants have started analysis of property values and creation of surveys for users 
of the trails.

$100,000 ^Budget

$15,000Spent 6/30

66502-000

100% ODOT Funded

Rural Transportation Planning Partnership

Guidance was provided to Buckeye Hills - Hocking Valley Regional Development 
District as it  began its transportation planning activities as a result of ODOT's new 
rural transportation planning organization program.  This included staff attendance at 
several meetings and specific input as they put together a public involvement plan.

$250,000 ^Budget

$10,031Spent 6/30

66538-000

80% MORPC STP

Regional Development I

MORPC completed a white paper on the status of zoning based on consultation with a 
task force consisting of public and private partners. The paper has been posted on 
MORPC's website. In summation, direct communication, clearly defined regulations, 
and a streamlined approach are the best plans of actions from the perspective of the 
private sector. In addition, many of the zoning codes in the Central Ohio region are 
antiquated and do allow mixed development that current market trends are tending 
toward.In addition, a look up tool of zoning districts of communities was developed 
and is avaialble on the MORPC website. This tool allows users to view charactersitics 
of zoning districts by choosing either community or use.  The tool is driven by a 
database that is expected to be useful in continuing efforts to integrate land use 
development patterns with the transportation system as part of element 66551.

$470,000Budget

$449,185Spent 6/30

66551-000

80% MORPC STP

Regional Development III

Work on this project has not begun due to a lack of funding.$330,000 ^Budget

$0Spent 6/30

66552-000 Freight Trends Study

The Central Ohio Freight Trends Study stalled because of personnel changes with the 
consultant and needing appropriate documentation from the consultant to process 
invoices.

$200,000 ^Budget

$116,819Spent 6/30

^ Project continues beyond SFY 2014



66562-000

80% MORPC STP

Supplemental Planning SFY13

1) See 60214-000 for activities related to the TIP and project expedition.
2) Traffic counts collected by various entities were processed into the MORPC online 
database system. The collection plan for 2014/2015 was developed.
3) MORPC continues to work with Community Research Partners to update data to 
DataSource, a regional data access tool. It was presented at the Ohio Conference of 
Community Development spring workshop. Diagnostics reports show approximately 
400 individuals have registered to use the site since it's unveiling in October of 2012.
Collaboration with regional data providers continues with the Franklin County LBRS, 
and MORPC met with ODOT to discuss formats and timing for providing an annual 
data set, which will be in Ocotber, to ODOT for inclusion in their state wide GIS 
projects.  
4) MORPC worked with Perry Township, Columbus and Worthington to conduct a 
traffic study for the SR 161 corridor from Sawmill Road to SR 315.

$312,500 ^Budget

$250,983Spent 6/30

66563-000

80% MORPC STP

Supplemental Planning SFY14

Due to carryover from Supplemental Planning SFY13 (66562-000) this work element 
was not initiated and was subsequently cancelled.

$312,500Budget

$0Spent 6/30

66565-000

80% MORPC STP

Regional Growth Impact Analysis

Calthorpe Associates was selected as the consultant for the Regional Growth Impact 
Analysis "insight2050" project, and a steering committee was formed to guide the 
project. 

Staff worked with the consultant to supply them with the data they needed to begin 
conducting their analyses.

$500,000 ^Budget

$177,020Spent 6/30

67405-000

100% FTA

Ongoing Human Services Transportation Coordination --

There was no activity under this work element in SFY 2014.$71,621 ^Budget

$16,271Spent 6/30

^ Project continues beyond SFY 2014



III.  Ridesharing and Air Quality Projects

WORK ELEMENT

FUNDING SUMMARY

REPORT SUMMARY

$2,298,750Total Budget

$566,158Balance Remaining for SFY 2015 or later is

66713-001

100% MORPC CMAQ

Transportation Services (Ridesharing) SFY13

A small amount of funding was carried over into SFY14.  See 66714-001 for 
Transportation Services (Ridesharing) activities for the fiscal year.

$715,000Budget

$715,000Spent 6/30

66714-001

100% MORPC CMAQ

Transportation Services (Ridesharing) SFY14

RideSolutions continues to develop target messaging and special projects that assist 
in promoting TDM services.  The program sponsors and develops program services 
based on the needs of the individual commuter, employers, job-ready/training 
programs, colleges/universities and communities throughout the region.  

Vanpool and carpool services continue to meet the needs of commuters.  The 
program is developing and retaining partnerships with not-for-profit agencies, working 
with employers that are relocating their work sites, and assisting and leading 
employers in developing an overall environmental goal and plan for their work sites.  
RideSolutions is helping communities move forward in implementing TDM strategies 
that help relieve congestion in their neighborhoods, helping their residents to do their 
part to reduce fuel consumption, plus save money.  

RideSolutions and its TDM partners continue to stay abreast of research and trends 
and share best practices of new and innovative ways to promote the entire share-the-
ride and share-the-road concepts.

$715,000Budget

$406,802Spent 6/30

66730-000

100% MORPC CMAQ

Air Quality Awareness SFY12-13

Funding was carried over from FY 13 to FY 14.  See 66731-000 for Air Quality 
Awareness activities for SFY 2014.

$500,000Budget

$500,000Spent 6/30

66731-000

100% MORPC CMAQ

Air Quality Awareness SFY14

In FY14, the program maintained its daily air quality forecasting program, coordinated 
public outreach events to educate the public about air quality, and engaged area 
employers in finding facilities and commuting solutions to improve air quality.  
MORPC continues to issue daily air quality forecasts, including 2 Air Quality Alerts to 
the public for ozone and particle pollution between July 1, 2013 and June 30, 2014, 
and maintained the Central Ohio Air Quality Hotline.  The program coordinated public 
outreach events and media interviews to educate residents about the health impacts 
of air pollution and actions that they can take to reduce pollution, and coordinated and 
hosted a Regional Education Forum entitled “Be Air Aware and Act to Protect Your 
Health.”  MORPC convened 3 Greener Workplace Roundtables with the goal of 
engaging area employers to share strategies to improve options for commuters and 
reduce air quality footprints.

$368,750 ^Budget

$110,790Spent 6/30

^ Project continues beyond SFY 2014



IV. Projects Undertaken By Other Entities

WORK ELEMENT

FUNDING SUMMARY

REPORT SUMMARY

$0Total Budget

66505-000

No funding

Ongoing Local Planning

MORPC regularly monitors local planning activities.  A current library of new plans is 
maintained on the website under the Studies and Plans section.

MORPC staff regularly participates in planning efforts of local communities.

$0 ^Budget

$0Spent 6/30

67401-000

No funding

Ongoing COTA Activities

COTA completed its normal service changes in September, January and May.  COTA 
continued work on bus stop planning and implemented changes during services 
changes.  The bus stop design standards were updated. 

COTA launched a Transit System Review (TSR) effort in late 2013.  Initial concepts 
were presented to the community in the spring for feedback.  At of the end of the 
fiscal year COTA was reviewing comments and working on the final recommendation.  
COTA began initial planning to launch a "Next Generation" long-range planning 
activity in the fall.

$0Budget

$0Spent 6/30

67402-000

No funding

Ongoing DATA Activities

DATABus continued to work through its transition from a rural to urban transit 
system.  This included initiating a study identifying ways to find local funding.

$0Budget

$0Spent 6/30

^ Project continues beyond SFY 2014



 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Transportation Policy Committee 

 

FROM: 

 

Nick Gill, Assistant Director 

Transportation Systems & Funding 

 

DATE: 

 

September 12, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-14-14: “ESTABLISHING PRIORITIES FOR 

APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED TO THE OHIO STATEWIDE URBAN 

CMAQ COMMITTEE” 

  
Resolution T-14-14 is to identify the top four priorities for projects being submitted 

from MORPC for CMAQ funding to the Ohio Statewide Urban CMAQ Committee 

(OSUCC).  This is in accordance with the statewide process and evaluation criteria as 

collectively established by the eight large MPOs. 

 

As has been reported over the last 18 months or so, ODOT directed the eight large 

MPOs in Ohio to establish one statewide process to manage and select projects to 

utilize the approximately $59 million annually that ODOT allocates collectively to 

those MPOs.  Previously, each MPO was allocated funds individually.  MORPC’s 

allocation was about $11 million per year.  The eight large MPOs established the 

OSUCC, which includes representatives from the transportation departments of each 

of these MPOs.  Throughout 2013, they worked to establish the procedures and 

evaluation criteria to select projects and managed the pooled funding.  They 

completed this process at the end of 2013 and are implementing it for the first time 

now.  

 

MORPC staff worked to incorporate the statewide process into the update of its 

project solicitation process, which was adopted via Resolution T-3-14 in April.  This 

included a summary of the statewide process, how it integrates with our normal 

solicitation process and the statewide evaluation criteria.  In short, we did not create 

a separate process to solicit projects for statewide CMAQ funding.  Our process uses 

the same solicitation process that was just completed in August.  Staff then 

determines which projects are CMAQ-eligible and completes the OSUCC summary 

sheet for each project, scores it per the statewide criteria, then submits it to the 

OSUCC.  The OSUCC schedule requires that projects are to be submitted in mid-

September.  The OSUCC will then collectively review all of the applications and 

scoring and make its selection of projects to fund by December.  

 

One aspect of the OSUCC evaluation criteria is a ranking of the top four projects 

submitted from each MPO.  These projects ranked one through four receive points in 

the evaluation based on their rank.  This resolution is to establish these priorities in 

order one through four.



 
 

Resolution T-14-14 Memo 

Page 2 

 

As a result of the establishment of the statewide process, even existing projects with 

CMAQ commitments must go through the OSUCC to request additional funding.  

Providing additional CMAQ funding to existing projects is not a process solely at 

MORPC’s discretion.  During the process of updating existing commitments over the 

summer, 9 CMAQ-eligible projects are not currently fully funded using CMAQ funding.  

In addition, 21 of the new project applications that were received are eligible for 

CMAQ funding and staff consideration of candidates for the statewide process.  

These are shown in the attachment to the resolution. 

 

The Attributable Funds Committee (AFC) is charged with making recommendations 

for projects to use MORPC-attributable funding.  During its September 10th meeting 

the AFC recommended the four projects to receive the priority points as: 

1. Columbus Signals Phase D 

2. COTA CNG replacement buses 

3. Whitehall Signals 

4. Columbus Hamilton Road project 

 

The AFC’s selection of these projects was based on: 

 These are projects with existing commitments of MORPC funding that 

can utilize additional CMAQ funding 

 Analysis of the preliminary scoring using the statewide criteria and how 

the extra points would add to their score 

 Amount of additional funding requested 

 

Finally, staff expects several projects to receive funding through the OSUCC process.  

Thus, even though only four projects are ranked, staff expects other projects (existing 

commitments and new applications) to receive funding through the OSUCC process.  

In addition, all new applications will also be continuing through the MORPC-

attributable funding evaluation process with the results of it and the OSUCC process 

being merged together for the AFC recommendations in early December. 

 

 

 

NTG:NV:bsn 

 

Enclosure: Resolution T-14-14 



 

 

RESOLUTION T-14-14 

 

“ESTABLISHING PRIORITIES FOR APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED TO THE OHIO STATWIDE URBAN CMAQ 

COMMITTEE” 

 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) provides allocations of Congestion 

Mitigation/Air Quality (CMAQ) federal transportation funding to Metropolitan Planning Organizations 

(MPOs) in air quality non-attainment and maintenance areas; and 

 

WHERAS, ODOT directed the eight large Ohio MPOs to develop one process to manage and select 

projects to use the pooled set of funding allocated collectively to those eight areas; and 

 

WHEREAS, the eight large Ohio MPOs established the Ohio Statewide Urban CMAQ Committee 

(OSUCC) to develop and implement a process to manage and select projects to use CMAQ funds; and  

 

WHEREAS, the OSUCC completed development of the process in late 2013 and is implementing it for 

the first time in 2014; and  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC incorporated the change in the management of CMAQ funds into the MORPC 

Principles and Procedures for managing MORPC-attributable federal transportation funds in its 

update via Resolution T-3-14; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC has conducted the process to receive updated information to previous MORPC 

funding commitments and received applications for commitments of funding for new projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, applications from each MPO to the OSUCC for CMAQ funds are due in mid-September; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, an aspect of the OSUCC evaluation criteria included a ranking of the top four (ranked one 

through four) application priorities submitted by each MPO; and  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC staff has reviewed the updates and new applications for funding, identifying 

projects eligible for CMAQ funding; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Attributable Funds Committee (AFC) is charged with making recommendations for 

projects to use MORPC-attributable funding; and  

 

WHEREAS, MORPC staff has worked with the AFC to establish the top four priorities as provided in 

the attachment to this resolution; and 

 

WHEREAS, the additional projects as shown on the attachment are also being submitted to the 

OSUCC for CMAQ funding; and  

 

WHEREAS, all projects submitted during the funding cycle will also continue through MORPC’s 

regular project evaluation and selection process; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee at its meeting on September 8, 2014 and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee at its meeting on September 10, 2014, recommended approval 

of this resolution to the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

 



 

 

Resolution T-14-14 

Page 2 

 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the top four priorities as shown in the attachment are submitted to the OSUCC 

for CMAQ funding. 

 

Section 2. That the additional projects shown on the attachment are also being submitted to the 

OSUCC for CMAQ funding. 

 

Section 3. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal 

deliberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption 

of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee.  

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

_________________________________________  

Date 

 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

 

Attachment: Projects Being Submitted to OSUCC for CMAQ funding 



 

 

Resolution T-14-14 Attachment: Projects being submitted to OSUCC for CMAQ Funding 

Existing MORPC Funding Commitments to Request Additional CMAQ funding through OSUCC 

Rank Project Title Jurisdiction 
Current CMAQ 

Commitment 

Additional 

Request 
Total 

1 
Columbus Traffic Signal System, 

Phase D* 
Columbus $2,530,174 $9,176,196 $11,706,370 

2 
2016-2017 Compressed Natural Gas 

Bus Purchase** 
COTA $0 $4,942,112 $4,942,112 

3 Whitehall Signals Update* Whitehall $4,485,000 $1,521,429 $6,006,429 

4 
Arterial Street Rehabilitation - 

Hamilton Road* 
Columbus $0 $15,856,000 $15,856,000 

 Lazelle Road Phase A Columbus $2,143,560 $827,892 $2,971,452 

 Lazelle Road Phase C Columbus $3,488,960 $1,019,529 $4,508,489 

 Taylor Road Improvement Project Etna Township $2,247,446 $657,055 $2,904,501 

 Center/Milnor/Meadows Intersection 

Realignment 
Pickerington $506,560 $934,146 $1,440,706 

 FRA-CR222 (Gender Road) at 

Refugee 
Columbus $1,360,000 $774,085 $2,134,085 

 
 

Total $16,761,700 $35,708,444 $52,470,144 

*MORPC's total current commitment is greater than shown.  This is the amount of CMAQ "grandfathered" for the  project. 

** MORPC committed funds to COTA for SFY 18 & 19, but that is outside the OSUCC grandfathered amounts. 

New Funding Applications to Request CMAQ funding through OSUCC 

Project Title Jurisdiction CMAQ Request 

Bexley Citywide Traffic Signal System Interconnect Upgrade with 

Traffic Monitoring and Coordination  
Bexley $1,513,512 

Barnett Road at Livingston Avenue Columbus $308,680 

Columbus Traffic Signal System, Phase E Columbus $11,552,720 

Hilliard-Rome Road at Feder Road Columbus $3,323,080 

Roberts Road-Hilliard-Rome Road to Westrock Drive Columbus $4,800,560 

Refugee Road and Pickerington Road Intersection Improvement Fairfield County Engineer $1,584,640 

Frank Road Franklin County Engineer $11,106,360 

Grandview Heights Citywide Traffic Signal System Interconnect 

Upgrade with Traffic Monitoring and Coordination 
Grandview Heights 

$684,190 

New Albany Traffic Signal System New Albany $985,565 

DEL-CR9 (TR121) Liberty and Seldom Seen Road Intersection 

Improvements 
Powell 

$1,316,900 

City of Whitehall Traffic Signal System Interconnect Upgrade with 

Traffic Monitoring and Coordination 
Whitehall $1,310,364 

Entrance & Exit Roadways for Consolidated Rental Car Facility at Port 

Columbus International Airport 
CRAA 

$1,638,076 

2018-2019 Compressed Natural Gas Bus Purchase COTA $2,099,990 

2020 Compressed Natural Gas Bus Purchase COTA $3,359,984 

CoGo Bike Share Station Bexley $34,383 

Alum Creek Trail---Johnstown Road/East Columbus Connector Columbus $1,170,774 

COGO Bike Share Expansion Columbus $441,156 

COTA Sidewalks Phase III Columbus $8,140,000 

McKinley Ave Shared-use Path Columbus $2,950,000 

Olentangy Trail Improvements---Antrim Park to Bethel Road Columbus $1,871,100 

New Albany/Rocky Fork MetroPark Connector New Albany $510,176 

 

Total $60,702,210 


	MORPC Legislative Update July - August 2014.pdf
	Top Advocacy Items
	Top News in Ohio
	Kegler Brown Government Affairs Team




